
 

 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Thursday, 31 May 2018 at 2.00 pm 

Location: Sparkenhoe Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 

Contact: Cat Tuohy (Tel. 0116 305 5483) 

Email: cat.tuohy@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. A. E. Pearson CC (Chairman) 

 
Mr. D. C. Bill MBE CC 

Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Dr. P. Bremner CC 

Mr. Max Hunt CC 
 

 

Mr. J. Morgan CC 
Mr J. Poland CC 
Mrs. J. Richards CC 
Mrs B. Seaton CC 
 

 
Please note: this meeting will be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 

Council’s web site at http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk 
– Notices will be on display at the meeting explaining the arrangements. 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   
  
  

1.  
  

Appointment of Chairman.  
 

 
 

 

2.  
  

Election of Vice Chairman.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Minutes of the meeting held on 6 April, 2018.  
 

 
 

(Pages 5 - 8) 

4.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

6.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 

 
 

 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/public-involvement/watch-council-meetings-online


 
 
 
 

 

elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

7.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

8.  
  

Declarations of the Party Whip in accordance 
with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 
16.  
 

 
 

 

9.  
  

Presentation of Petitions under Standing 
Order 36.  

 
 

 

 

Petition: Road Safety around Moira Primary School 
A petition is to be presented, signed by 529 local residents, in the 
following terms:  

“We the undersigned petition the Council to in conjunction with other 
relevant agencies, to urgently address our concerns about road 
safety at Moira School. The school has grown in size from an infant 
to a primary school in recent years and the school run has become 
much busier. There are repeated occurrences of inconsiderate 
driver behaviour and potentially illegal parking, which the school has 
documented and drivers have been spoken to. In the worst example, 
a car was written off outside the school due to double parking and 
we believe action needs to be taken before there is a serious 
accident involving a child. The risks are compounded by restricted 
visibility at the school entrance looking towards Blackfordby and the 
close proximity of the speed limit of 60mph for vehicles entering the 
school’s 20mph zone. 

The school and the local community are working together to reduce 
the likelihood of accident or injury to our pupils, parents or local 
residents. As a matter of urgency we feel that the council should 
carefully analyse and audit the current risks and consider making 
the appropriate adjustments to minimalize these.” 

 

 

10.  
  

Draft Passenger Transport Policy and 
Strategy.  
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Transport 
 

(Pages 9 - 102) 

11.  
  

Performance Report Quarter 4.  
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Transport 
 

(Pages 103 - 
112) 

12.  
  

Date of next meeting.  
 

 
 

 

 The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled to take place on 
Thursday 28 June 2018. 
 
 

 

13.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  

 
 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 

QUESTIONING BY MEMBERS OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
 
The ability to ask good, pertinent questions lies at the heart of successful and 
effective scrutiny. To support members with this, a range of resources, including 
guides to questioning, are available via the Centre for Public Scrutiny website 
www.cfps.org.uk.  
 
The following questions have been agreed by Scrutiny members as a good starting 
point for developing questions:- 
 

 Who was consulted and what were they consulted on? What is the process 
for and quality of the consultation? 

 How have the voices of local people and frontline staff been heard? 

 What does success look like? 

 What is the history of the service and what will be different this time? 

 What happens once the money is spent? 

 If the service model is changing, has the previous service model been 
evaluated? 

 What evaluation arrangements are in place – will there be an annual review? 
 
 
 

http://www.cfps.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held at County Hall, Glenfield on Friday, 6 April 2018.  
 

PRESENT 
 

Mr. D. Slater CC (in the Chair) 
 

Mr. I. E. G. Bentley CC 
Mr. D. C. Bill MBE CC 
Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Dr. P. Bremner CC 
 

Mr. J. G. Coxon CC 
Mr. Max Hunt CC 
Mr. A. E. Pearson CC 
Mr J. Poland CC 
 

 
 
In attendance. 
 
Mr. B. Pain CC, Cabinet Lead Member for Environment and Transport. 
 

69. Minutes.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 1 March 2018 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed.  
 

70. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

71. Questions asked by members.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 
 

72. Urgent Items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

73. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
No declarations were made. 
 

74. Declarations of the Party Whip.  
 
There were no declarations of the party whip. 
 
 
 

5 Agenda Item 3



 
 

 

75. Presentation of Petitions under Standing Order 36.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no petitions had been received under Standing Order 
36. 
 

76. Environment and Transport 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme and Highways and 
Transportation Work Programme.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Environment and Transport 
concerning the Environment and Transport 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme and 
Highways and Transportation Work Programme.  A copy of the report, marked “Agenda 
Item 8” is filed with these minutes.  
 
In presenting the report, the Director of Environment and Transport circulated a revised 
Appendix A – Capital Programme 2018/19 – 2021/22, and explained that, as more data 
became available regarding the assets of the County Council this gave increased 
knowledge of how best to manage those assets.  Additionally, the severe winter had 
caused more defects on the road network.  Both aspects had resulted in a need to re-
allocate some of the predicted spend, although the overall spending totals remained the 
same.  A copy of the revised Appendix A is filed with these minutes.  
 
Arising from discussion, the following points were raised: 
 

i) The Environment and Transport Capital Programme and the Highways and 
Transportation Work Programme had been developed within what remained to be 
challenging circumstances, as the Department was required to make savings of 
£7.1m over the next 4 years.  Funding for the Capital Programme came from a 
variety of sources, including the Department for Transport Capital Maintenance 
Grant, the Local Growth Fund, other Government competitive funding schemes 
and the County Council’s Capital funding;  
 

ii) Members were informed that there was a need for flexibility within the programme 
due to the nature of the business; as more detailed information became available 
regarding the road network there was a need to re-allocate funding between 
schemes.  Funding would be re-allocated on a risk based approach with the issue 
of safety being the main consideration;  
 

iii) Regarding the engagement and involvement of local Members in each proposed 
highways scheme, the Committee was informed that the local member would be 
consulted on each of the schemes as more detailed information became available.  
Each programme for highway maintenance activities would also be made available 
online; 
 

iv) The new Risk Based Approach to Highways Maintenance, which would be 
introduced from October 2018, would be discussed at a future meeting of the 
Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  Members of the 
public would also be informed in order to explain the new process and to manage 
expectations of service delivery; 

 
v) Within the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), £600,000 had been allocated 

under the Revenue Budget to assist with the maintenance of signs, lines and 
gullies.  However, improvements and repairs to the road infrastructure, which 
included gullies, would be included in the Capital Programme;  

6



 
 

 

 

vi) Members were reminded that as the Lead Local Flood Authority, the County 
Council had a statutory duty as a consultee on all planning applications. 
Additionally, the Council had a duty to investigate any flooding caused to 
properties and to identify partners who were responsible for addressing this - this 
duty did not include the need for the County Council to solve the flooding;  
 

vii) It was explained to Members that “microsimulation” was a process of transport 
modelling, which looked forensically over a small area at specific junctions.  It was 
used to help determine the appropriate action needed for the site concerned and 
illustrated the impact of the proposed road schemes on traffic.  However, it did not 
address air quality, which was the responsibility of the relevant district council.  
Additionally, the data collated through microsimulation would be used as 
supporting evidence for future funding bids; 

 
viii)The current Rail Strategy, approved by the Cabinet last year, was operated jointly 

between the County Council, Leicester City Council and the Local Enterprise 
Partnership.  The funding allocated within the 2018/19 programme allowed some 
investigatory works for rail improvement schemes that might be needed.  The 
study regarding the Leicester to Burton line concluded that an investment in the 
region of £175m was required to bring the line up to the standard required for 
passenger transport services as well as an annual revenue investment of £2-3m 
as a subsidy as it was expected that there would be insufficient passenger 
demand to cover the operational costs of the railway. As a result, the Cabinet had 
decided not to pursue the scheme;  

 
Members also expressed a number of concerns about potential road schemes in their 
ward areas, and these were addressed by officers.   Specifically, Mr Boulter CC asked 
that his concerns regarding the condition of the Blue Bridge in Wigston and the fact that it 
had not been included in the Capital Programme be recorded in the minutes.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the comments of the Committee be forwarded to the Cabinet for consideration at its 
meeting on 10 April 2018, and that the Cabinet be advised that the Committee supported 
the Environment and Transport 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme and Highways 
and Transportation Work Programme.  
 

77. Date of next meeting.  
 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held on Thursday 31 May 
at 2pm. 
 
 

2.00 – 3.05pm CHAIRMAN 
06 April 2018 

 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 
 
 

ENVIRONMENT AND TRANSPORT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE – 31 MAY 2018 

 
DRAFT PASSENGER TRANSPORT POLICY AND STRATEGY  

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT AND TRANSPORT 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to advise the Environment and Transport Committee of 

the engagement and consultation exercise on the draft Passenger Transport Policy 
and Strategy (PTPS) (Appendix A and B) and to seek the Committee’s views as part 
of the consultation exercise. 

 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 

 
2. The Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3) identifies six overall priorities, three of which are 

relevant when considering passenger transport provision:- 
 

 supporting the local economy; 

 encouraging active and sustainable travel; and, 

 improving connectivity and accessibility. 
 

3. At its meeting on 13 September 2013, the Cabinet considered a report of the 
Environment and Transport Scrutiny Review Panel on the County Council’s 95% Bus 
Coverage Policy and agreed a new supported bus policy which aimed to provide a 
strategic fit with LTP3 objectives, meet ‘essential travel needs’, and would ensure 
that the whole transport offer was underpinned by clear, value-for-money criteria 
(see Appendix C). 

 
4. At its meeting on 11 December 2015, the Cabinet approved a revised funding 

methodology for Community Transport services.  This saw a fall in grant from the 
Council in 2016/17, but the performance criteria allowed community transport 
providers to qualify for additional funding in 2017/18 and 2018/19, if they were able 
to expand their service. 

 
5. At its meeting on 10 February 2017, the County Council considered the Medium 

Term Financial Strategy. An altered motion relating to the removal of saving ET11 
‘Public Bus Services – Revised Policy on Subsidised Transport’ was proposed (the 
savings would now be met through the outcome of the Review of Council Tax and 
Business Rates Collection). Instead, a review of the effectiveness of the bus policy, 
comprising further work on the cost effectiveness of the Council’s policy on 
subsidised transport, was approved.  

 
6. At its meeting on 18 January 2018, the Environment and Transport Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee considered a report on the ‘Community Bus Partnership 

9 Agenda Item 10



 

Review’, outlining current performance of these four community bus partnerships. 
 
7. At its meeting on 9 March 2018, the Cabinet considered a report on the draft 

Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy (PTPS), which will replace the existing 
‘Revised Policy on the Supported Bus Network’.  The resolutions included approval 
to undertake an engagement and consultation exercise on the draft Strategy. The 
outcome of the consultation and a final version of the PTPS will be brought to the 
Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee in Autumn/Winter 
2018, prior to it being submitted to the Cabinet for approval.  
 
Background 

 
Historic policy 

 
8. The Transport Act (1985) states that it is the “Duty of the County Council to secure 

the provision of such public transport services as the Council consider it appropriate 
to secure to meet any public transport requirements within the County which would 
not in their view be met apart from any action taken by them for that purpose”.  The 
Authority’s statutory duties are set in Appendix D. 

  
9. Between 2002 and 2014, the County Council operated a 95% Bus Coverage Policy 

which, in conjunction with the commercial bus network, provided a daytime (Monday 
to Saturday) bus service of an hourly frequency or better, within an 800 metre walk, 
for 95% of the County residents. 

 
10. The policy was reviewed through a Scrutiny Review Panel between 2012 and 2014, 

in recognition of the bus market maturing and the local demography and economy 
changing.  At its meeting on 13 September 2013, the Cabinet approved a “Revised 
Policy for the Supported Bus Network” (Appendix C), which guides the Authority’s 
current approach.  

 
Current Local Bus Policy 

 
11. The current policy defines what the Authority considers the essential transport needs 

of residents, balanced against affordability and value for money in order to influence 
what, if any, service should be provided.  Objectives will be met through a mix of:- 

 
a) conventional bus services for higher demand areas; and, 
b) less frequent minibuses and Demand Responsive Transport (DRT) type 

services in areas of low usage (rural areas). 
 

12. However, shifting demographics and market forces have meant that more areas are 
now seeing less frequent commercial bus services.  The viability of more routes is 
being called into question by commercial operators, with the likelihood that more 
services will be withdrawn if there is no local authority support. 

 
13. This increased demand for the County Council’s support, compounded by the 

increasing cost of providing bus services and budget constraints, requires a review of 
the existing contracted provision.  

 
14. In order for all existing supported services to be considered in the development of 

the PTPS, all tendered bus service contracts (including community bus partnerships 

10



 

(CBPs) have, where necessary, been extended until its adoption (June 2019). 
 

 Existing Service Expenditure 
 

15. Current  expenditure on services within scope of the PTPS is identified in the table 
below:- 

Service Provided 2018/19 Total Budget £ 

Local Bus Service 1,940,000 

DfT Bus Subsidy Operator Grant (BSOG) -423,000 

Demand Responsive Transport (DRT) 135,000 

Community Transport Providers 471,000 

Public Transport Information 191,000 

Total  2,314,000 

 
16. A list of the current contracted local bus services is provided in Appendix E.  The 

contracts cover all of the service operation or part-service operation.  Park and Ride 
services are not within scope of the PTPS, as explained in paragraph 31 of this 
report. 

 
17. The Bus Service Operators Grant (BSOG) payment is made directly to the Authority.  

It relates to the element of fuel duty rebate previously paid to bus operators where 
these services were entirely contracted by and operated at the risk of the Authority.  
This figure was fixed by government a number of years ago and has not changed, 
regardless of any changes in contract provision. 

 
18. There are currently 40 DRT services under contract across the County, providing 

transport for rural/isolated villages where there are no conventional public transport 
services available.  These services provide transport into the nearest settlement or 
market town and operate at fixed times, on fixed days, and must be pre-booked for 
the service to operate. 

 
19. There are 13 Community Transport Providers operating schemes, supported by the 

Community Transport Grant across the whole of the County.  They provide transport 
for elderly, infirm, disabled and rurally isolated residents who cannot access or use 
conventional bus services. 

 
20. In previous years some cost savings were made in-year with contract changes 

previously agreed by the Cabinet.  Understanding more recent commercial changes 
to bus services, these savings were identified as a budget contingency / provision for 
cost increases, including provision to subsidise bus services / routes that are no 
longer commercially viable. The budget, however, has now been brought into line 
with expected expenditure for the 2018/19 budget. Therefore, should further 
commercial services be withdrawn, any additional budget required will need to be 
found from within other existing Environment and Transport revenue budgets. 
 

21. The Public Transport Information element involves a variety of tasks, such as the 
promotion of bus services, the maintenance of bus shelters, and the provision of data 
through websites.  This helps to ensure residents are aware of the different types of 
passenger transport available and that supporting infrastructure is appropriately 
maintained. 

 

11



 

Catalysts for Change  
 

National Policies – Bus Services Act 2017 
 
22. The Bus Services Act (BSA) received Royal Assent in April 2017.  The aim of the 

BSA is to improve local services for passengers and to provide local authorities and 
bus operators with a more effective toolkit to enable improvements to be made to 
bus services in their areas. 

 
23. In addition, the BSA aims to:- 

 

 improve partnership options; 

 make franchising easier (in areas with elected mayors only); 

 make it easier for passengers to access information about routes, fares and 
timetables and ensure ticketing schemes meet passengers’ needs; and, 

 give the Secretary of State the power to make regulations requiring bus 
operators to provide audio-visual information on-board buses. 

 
24. As an “Enabling Act”, the BSA brings with it no direct financial implications for the 

Authority; there are no costs to the Council, but nor is there any financial support to 
improve local bus services.  Without additional financial support from central 
government, the Act only serves as a reminder of what could be done, not what will 
be done. 

 
25. The draft PTPS takes into account all the regulations and guidance attached to the 

BSA. 
 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2021/22 
 

26. The Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2021/22 includes a £400,000 
saving arising from the implementation of a PTPS. 

 
27. On 6 December 2017, the County Council approved the new Strategic Plan and 

Single Outcomes Framework. The five strategic outcomes for the Authority are:- 
 

 Strong Economy – Leicestershire’s economy is growing and resilient so that 
people and businesses can fulfil their potential; 

 Wellbeing and Opportunity – The people of Leicestershire have the 
opportunities and support they need to take control of their health and 
wellbeing; 

 Keeping People Safe – People in Leicestershire are safe and protected from 
harm; 

 Great Communities – Leicestershire communities are thriving and integrated 
places where people help and support each other and take pride in their local 
area; and, 

 Affordable and Quality Homes – Leicestershire has a choice of quality homes 
that people can afford. 

 
28. The draft PTPS has been developed in light of the Council’s new Strategic 

Outcomes. 
 

12



 

 
Proposed - Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy 
 
 Scope 
 
29. The PTPS would be applicable to road-based general passenger transport services 

within Leicestershire.  This covers a broader spectrum than just conventional “big 
bus” services and includes passenger transport solutions using a range of 
appropriate smaller vehicles.   

 
30. Rail travel, commercial taxi and private hire services, and specialist transport 

services for education and social care purposes, are not included, as these are dealt 
with in other policy documents. 

 
31. Park and Ride services form part of transport initiatives that Leicestershire County 

and Leicester City councils have implemented to tackle congestion in the Leicester 
urban area and are not covered by this proposed policy. 

 
32. The Authority’s statutory duty and responsibility with regard to the provision of 

transport to school is covered under the Mainstream Home to School/College 
Transport Policy and therefore is not in scope of the PTPS.  The draft PTPS will look 
to maximise value from services provided and this, however, may include looking at 
their potential to carry school and college attendees. 

 
33. The draft PTPS covers two specific elements:- 

 
1) the policy objectives i.e. what the Authority is trying to achieve in relation to 

passenger transport; and, 
2) how those objectives will be delivered, including what is considered value for 

money within the available resource. 
 
34. This will allow the Authority to:- 

 

 meet its statutory duties; 

 address priority needs within budget constraints; 

 ensure services are delivering value for money; 

 inform and manage expectations about the likely levels of service; and, 

 provide a transparent process for decision making and priorities. 
 

35. Copies of the draft PTPS can be found at Appendix A (Policy) and B (Strategy). 
Appendix F shows the proposed framework of the PTPS documents.  This sets the 
context against which service delivery and performance will be monitored on an 
ongoing basis.  A summary is given below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



 

Policy Principles 
 

36. The draft Policy sets out the key policy principles for the Authority in delivering future 
passenger transport services. These are:- 

 

Policy Description 

PTP1 Leicestershire County Council will continue to encourage residents, 

workers and visitors to use passenger transport services in preference 

to the private car wherever possible, because of the environmental and 

decongestion benefits of doing so.  
PTP2 Leicestershire County Council will encourage commercial transport 

operators to meet as many of the access needs of Leicestershire 

residents, workers and visitors as possible through provision of 

commercial transport services.   

PTP3 Leicestershire County Council will encourage community organisations 

to provide transport services for their communities that address access 

needs that are not covered by commercial passenger transport 

services.  The aim will be for such services to be self-financing; 

however, the Council will provide some level of grant support (within 

affordability constraints) to help facilitate the establishment and 

operation of such services where necessary. 

PTP4 In the planning of new development in Leicestershire, the County 

Council will work with district and borough councils (planning 

authorities) to ensure that viable, long term accessibility by passenger 

transport is properly considered and, where appropriate, contributions 

are secured to facilitate such accessibility. 

PTP5 Where commercial, development-supported or community passenger 

transport services do not meet high priority needs for some residents, 

the County Council may consider intervening by offering organisational, 

operational or financial support for alternative passenger transport 

services.  Leicestershire County Council is not a major passenger 

transport provider to the general public and will only consider 

intervening where there is demonstrable and significant unmet demand 

for transport services that serve the high priority journey purposes of 

food shopping, primary healthcare, and/or employment and training. 

Financial support will only be offered subject to affordability, value-for-

money and other criteria defined within the Passenger Transport 

Strategy. 

PTP6 The County Council will provide concessionary travel on registered 

local bus services for older and disabled people in accordance with 

legal requirements. 

PTP7 The County Council will work with commercial and community service 

providers to ensure that up-to-date, clear and accurate information is 

available to the public on passenger transport services through a range 

of appropriate information channels.   

14



 

Key Draft Policy Approach 
 
37. There are four key elements of the draft Policy that should be noted:- 

 

 the emphasis that is placed on the reliance of commercially operated bus 
services to meet the needs of most Leicestershire residents; 

 the focus on community based solutions as the first port of call where 
passenger transport needs are not met by commercially operated bus services; 

 that the Authority will only consider intervening where appropriate community 
solutions cannot be delivered.  Intervention may not be in the form of a 
conventional bus service however; and, 

 there may be circumstances where due to funding limitations it is not possible 
to meet an area’s particular needs (either full or part). 

 
38. In proposing this approach, officers are seeking to strike a balance between having a 

transparent and equitable process in supporting passenger transport against the 
limited financial resource available. It is recognised that some communities may 
require some support and assistance from the Authority in meeting their own 
passenger transport needs. The consultation exercise will help inform what this 
support and assistance could look like. 

 
39. There are a further 10 supporting principles, which cover community engagement, 

commercial engagement, use of low emission technologies, behaviour change, 
bidding for funding, seeking customer feedback, provision of user data, provision of 
information on services and seeking to maximise value, including looking at potential 
to carry school and college attendees. 

 
Strategy Elements 

 
40. The draft Strategy covers the Authority’s approach for the following elements:- 
 

Strategy Element County Council Approach 

Commercial Passenger 
Transport Services 

Support operators in delivering high quality services 
e.g. highlight opportunities for operators arising from 
development plans and potential growth markets 

Support for Community 
Transport (CT) 

Encourage existing operators to become less reliant 
on Council grants to deliver services, with the aim of 
becoming financially sustainable. The Authority will 
continue to pay a grant to organisations based on the 
number of trips and size of catchment population. 
The Authority will work with operators to minimise 
impacts, if any of the Government considerations in 
relation to S19 and S22 of the Transport Act 1985 
(permits for vehicle licencing).  Through the 
consultation the Authority will explore opportunities 
and roles in the development of community based 
solutions. 

Subsidised passenger 
transport services 

See paragraphs 49-52. 

15



 

Intervention in the planning 
system 

Encourage developers to engage with passenger 
transport operators to develop solutions that align 
with the type and nature of development to be 
served. These will need to be commercially viable 
and sustainable. 
 
Developer contributions to be sought to facilitate 
such accessibility. 

Passenger information Work in conjunction with passenger transport 
operators to ensure that information on local bus 
services is provided in suitable formats. 

Supporting infrastructure Continue to provide and maintain infrastructure that 
facilitates passenger transport use, in cooperation 
with operators 

Fares and ticketing Bus fares for commercial services and CT fares are 
primarily a decision for operators. Grant funded CT 
operators fares are expected to be comparable to 
other CT operators in the area. 
 
Encourage operators to offer discounted fare 
products e.g. weekly tickets. 
 
Fares on supported services will be set in line with 
those on commercial services in the area. Fares will 
be monitored to ensure fairness and consistency. 
 
Strong support for smart ticketing and willingness to 
work with operators to realise greater use of smart 
tickets in Leicestershire. 

Concessionary travel Continue to fund statutory English National 
Concessionary Travel Scheme for older and disabled 
people boarding local buses in Leicestershire. 

Dealing with service 
disruptions 

Improve the co-ordination, control and 
communication of road works through the 
introduction of a new Road Works Permitting 
Scheme. 
 
In all cases of passenger transport service 
disruption, the works promoter will be expected to 
consider the needs of users of those services and if 
necessary put forward a proposed alternative 
solution (in cooperation with service operators and 
the County Council) for meeting those needs.  

 
 
Key Draft Strategy Priorities 

 
 Support Commercial Network 

 
41. Many people’s passenger transport needs in Leicestershire will be met by 

commercial operators.  The draft Strategy therefore gives priority to supporting the 

16



 

commercial market, by both encouraging use of those services and by working with 
operators to create the conditions in which commercial services can thrive. 

 
42. Where the commercial market cannot meet some transport needs, the Authority has 

to consider whether it should intervene organisationally, operationally, or through 
financial support to any additional passenger transport.  Key factors considered in 
determining whether and how to intervene are set out in the following paragraphs. 

 
Identification of Priority Groups 

43. It is proposed that priority would be given to meeting the key needs of the following 
groups:- 

 

 older population; 

 disabled; 

 isolated people; and, 

 people living in employment-deprived areas in order to help them access the 
job market.   

 
This prioritisation is in line with the Authority’s new Strategic Outcomes, as defined in 
paragraph 27 of this report. 

 
Access to a local centre 

44. Where considering supporting services to supplement those provided commercially, 
the draft Strategy gives the highest priority to the following journey purposes:- 

 

 food shopping; 

 primary healthcare; and, 

 employment and training. 
 

45. A bus user survey for all the Authority contracted local bus services was undertaken 
in October 2017.  This has provided detailed information from the 3,346 respondents 
and includes “the purpose of journey”.  The headlines are:- 

 

 to/from shopping – 41% 

 travelling to/from work – 19% 

 visiting friends/relatives – 13% 

 leisure – 11%  

 to/from college/training – 8% 

 healthcare – 4% 

 personal business 4% 
 
46. This evidence provides the basis for the proposed priority journey purposes.  It 

should be noted that despite the relatively low use for healthcare, officers propose 
that enabling access to primary healthcare should be considered important in 
meeting a number of the wide ranging outcomes set out in the Strategic Plan.  The 
consultation exercise will help to further develop the Authority’s understanding 
around the priority journey purposes. 

 
47. The draft Strategy is therefore focussed on supporting passenger transport services 

that are most likely to enable people to access a range of such services and 
facilities.  It is proposed that priority is given to trying to ensure that as many 

17



 

Leicestershire residents as possible are able to reach a local centre at least once per 
week. 

 
Definition of Core times 

48. The draft Strategy focusses on supporting passenger transport trips on certain days 
of the week and at certain times.  In general, these are the times when the highest 
priority journey purposes are likely to be wanted.  Consideration will only be given to 
supporting services that depart or arrive at their first Leicestershire location between 
the following times:- 

 

 Monday to Friday 07.00 to 19.00; and, 

 Saturday 08.00 to 18.00. 
 

Financial Support for passenger transport services 
 

49. It is intended that all currently supported bus services will be reviewed under the new 
PTPS following its adoption, as will any services where an operator proposes to 
withdraw a commercial service.  Under the draft PTPS, financial support will only be 
provided if a supported replacement bus service or part-service scores well under an 
objective assessment scoring scheme.  This will enable the key aspects of the 
benefits and costs of supporting that service to be captured.  Three key indicators to 
be used in the assessment are:- 

 

Assessment Criteria Description 

1. Net subsidy cost per passenger - km This is the main indicator of value for 
money and compares the cost of 
supporting the service with the actual or 
forecast demand.  The net cost part of 
this measure takes account of what the 
cost would otherwise be of arranging 
alternative school transport where the 
service provides travel to school / 
college for entitled pupils, and of the 
additional cost of providing free travel to 
concessionary pass holders. 

2. Number of Leicestershire residents 
within the bus service’s catchment area 
who do not have access to another 
direct service to a local centre by other 
means (e.g. another bus or train service 
stopping within 800m of their home), 
and who are not within reasonable 
walking distance (800m) of a local 
centre.   

This indicator relates to the number of 
people for whom a particular service has 
a high value.  Where the catchment area 
includes areas of employment 
deprivation, people within the 
employment-deprived areas will count 
double for this measure. 

3. Journey purposes served Bus services that accommodate a 
number of high priority journey purposes 
are considered more ‘valuable’ than 
those that focus primarily on lower 
priority journey purposes. 

 
 

18



 

50. Once a bus service has been through the scoring mechanism, the resultant overall 
score will be viewed in the context of a case-for-support rating and used by officers 
to decide what intervention, if any, should be provided.  Any decision on the future of 
services will consider the implications of service removal on the overall provision of 
commercial passenger transport in the local area. 

 
51. Where an existing bus service scores poorly under the objective scoring mechanism, 

and is therefore withdrawn or curtailed, the Authority will consider the case for 
providing a localised ‘lifeline’ DRT service.  The best candidate service option will be 
determined by officers (in collaboration with community representatives, where 
possible) and will normally be the option that offers the best value within affordability 
constraints. 

 
52. Even where a bus service scores well there could be occasions where the Authority 

is not able to provide financial support due to budgetary pressures. 
 

Consultations  
 
53. The consultation with the public and key stakeholders is being undertaken on the 

draft PTPS between 21 March and 13 June 2018.  Consultation documents and 
surveys are available as a hard copy on bus routes and on request via a dedicated 
phone number.  The survey is designed to be easy to complete using mobile phones 
and tablets.  The consultation has been advertised widely through media channels 
and stakeholder networks.  
 
The document is also available for comment by the public, via the County Council 
website (see: www.leicestershire.gov.uk/passenger-transport-consultation) and a 
dedicated email address has been created for this purpose (ptps@leics.gov.uk).  The 
consultation documents are available as Appendices G1, G2, G3 and G4. 

 
54. It is important that the consultation attracts not just existing passenger transport 

service users, but engages as wide an audience as possible in order to help 
understand:- 

 

 views on the role that the Authority should play in providing mobility to those 
without use of/access to a private car (legislative requirements 
notwithstanding); and, 

 what is considered to offer good use of money in light of the Authority’s wider 
service and budgetary pressures. 

 
55. It is also important that people have an understanding of what the potential 

implications for currently supported passenger transport services could be, should 
the draft PTPS be implemented.  The consultation could also help the Authority to 
understand community capabilities and future assistance that might be required to 
help communities deliver their own solutions, as necessary.  

 
56. Thus the consultation includes the following:- 

 
1) scene setting – why  a new PTPS is needed; 
2) sets out broad principles of the PTPS; 
3) explains the key assessment criteria; and, 
4) potential effects of the PTPS – this will show how current supported bus 

19

http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/passenger-transport-consultation
mailto:ptps@leics.gov.uk


 

services could be affected with the adoption of the PTPS as currently drafted. 
 
57. Five consultation events have been held across the County the details of which are: 

 

Date Venue Time 

Thursday 3 May 2018 Measham Leisure Centre 7pm to 8.30pm 

Thursday 10 May 2018 Lutterworth Town Hall 7pm to 8.30pm 

Thursday 17 May 2018 Green Towers, Hinckley  7pm to 8.30pm 

Monday 21 May 2018 Melton Civic Suite 7pm to 8.30pm 

Wednesday 23 May 2018 Rosbebery St Peter’s 
Community Centre, 
Loughborough 

7pm to 8.30pm 

 
 

58. A Parish Council Briefing on the draft PTPS was held on 26 March 2018, which set 
out the current passenger transport services in Leicestershire, why a new PTPS is 
required, the approach being undertaken,  the PTPS proposals, consultation details, 
what the changes might mean in practice and the next steps post consultation. 
 

59. Five demonstration Demand Responsive Transport (DRT) services have been 
organised to coincide with the consultation period. This will provide residents in a 
number of localities with the opportunity to experience using a DRT, where no 
service currently exists. The demonstration sites are:  
 

Existing 
Local 
Bus 

Service  

Start date 
and days 

of 
operation 

for 3 
weeks 

Destination Villages 
served  

Time 
of first 
pick 
up 

Time of 
destination 

arrival 

Return 
journey 

time 

7 9 May  
 
Wed, Fri 

Measham Newton 
Burgoland, 
Snarestone, 
Appleby 
Magna 

09.45 10.00 12.00 

66 22 May  
 
Wed, Fri 

Hinckley Dadlington, 
Stoke 
Golding 

09.45 10.00 12.00 

 X55 23 May  
 
Wed, Fri 

Hinckley Sharnford, 
Stoney 
Stanton, 
Sapcote 

09.45 10.10 12.00 

25 24 May  
 
Tue, 
Thurs 

Melton 
Mowbray 

Scalford, 
Eastwell, 
Eaton 

09.45 10.05 12.00 

55/56 24 May  
 
Tue, 
Thurs 

Melton 
Mowbray 

Saxby, 
Garthorpe, 
Coston, 
Buckminster 

09.45 10.05 12.00 

 

20



 

60. Responses to the consultation will provide a basis for developing passenger 
transport services that are appropriate to the needs of users aligned to the realities of 
the Authority’s financial position. 

 
61. The outcome of this engagement and consultation exercise and the final versions of 

the Policy and Strategy will be considered by the Environment and Transport 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in September 2018, prior to it being submitted to 
the Cabinet for approval.  

 
Resource Implications 
 
62. The draft PTPS places an emphasis on communities meeting their own passenger 

transport needs where they cannot be met by commercially operated bus services. 
Whilst it is not the intention that the Authority should take the lead in proposing and 
helping to implement community-led solutions, nevertheless it is recognised that 
communities would require some support and assistance in doing so. 

 
63. Ascertaining the level of support needed by communities is one of the key aims of 

the consultation exercise.  This could include access to a dedicated officer, sharing 
of best practice, and possible grant funding.  This will be addressed in more detail 
when the outcome of the consultation is known, but the potential for resource and 
finance implications in respect of this should be noted. 

 
Timetable for Decisions 
 
64. Following consultation with the Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee the intended timetable for development of the PTPS is:- 
 

 a full report on the final draft PTPS, which takes account of the consultation 
feedback, will be presented to the Environment and Transport Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee in Autumn 2018; 

 the Cabinet to consider approval of final draft PTPS in Autumn 2018; and, 

 implementation of approved PTPS from April 2019. 
 

Conclusion 
 

65. To enable work to finalise the PTPS to be progressed, the Environment and 
Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to:- 

 
a) note and comment on the draft PTPS, enabling officers to include Environment 

and Transport’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee views in the final PTPS  
report when it is taken to the Cabinet; and, 

b) note that the work undertaken in preparing the draft PTPS supports the County 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2021/22. 

 
Background Papers 
 
9 March 2018 – Cabinet – ‘Draft Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy and Review of 
the Community Bus Partnerships’ 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=5178&Ver=4 
 
 

21

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=5178&Ver=4


 

18 January 2018 - Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 
‘Community Bus Partnership Review’ 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=5326&Ver=4 
 
10 February 2017 – Cabinet – ‘Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/18 – 2020/21’ 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=4858&Ver=4 
 
11 December 2015 – Cabinet – ‘Outcome of Consultation on Community Transport 
Funding’ http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=4233&Ver=4  
 
6 May 2014 – Cabinet – ‘Third Report of the Scrutiny Review Panel on the County 
Council’s 95% Bus Coverage Policy’ 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3990&Ver=4 
 
30 April 2014 - Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee – ‘Third 
Report of the Scrutiny Review Panel on the County Council’s 95% Bus Coverage Policy’ 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=4144&Ver=4 
 
13 September 2013 - Cabinet – ‘Second Report of the Scrutiny Review Panel on the 
County Council’s Bus Coverage Policy’  
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3634&Ver=4 
 
12 September 2013 – Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 
‘Second Report of the Scrutiny Review Panel on the County Council’s Bus Coverage 
Policy’ http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=3888&Ver=4 
 
3 April 2012 – Cabinet – ‘Report of the Scrutiny Review Panel on the County Council’s 
95% Bus Coverage Policy’ 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3390&Ver=4  
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
None. 
  
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A    Draft Passenger Transport Policy  
Appendix B    Draft Passenger Transport Strategy 
Appendix C   Second Report of the Scrutiny Review Panel on the County Council’s 

95% Bus Coverage Policy 2013    
Appendix D   The Council’s legal duty regarding subsidised bus services   
Appendix E   List of current contracted local bus services 
Appendix F   Draft Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy Framework 
Appendix G1   Consultation document  
Appendix G2   Consultation questionnaire 
Appendix G3   Consultation poster  
Appendix G4   Consultation Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs).  
 
 
 
 
 

22

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=5326&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=4858&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=4233&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3990&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=4144&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3634&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=3888&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3390&Ver=4


 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
66. The Equality Act 2010 requires the Authority to have due regard to the need to 

eliminate discrimination and to promote equality of opportunity between different 
protected groups.  

 
67. An Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA) is currently in 

development and will be informed by the outcome of the consultation.  A completed 
EHRIA will be presented to the Cabinet in Autumn 2018, alongside the consultation 
outcomes, to assist the Cabinet with its decision on the exercise of its Public Sector 
Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010.  

 
Environmental Impact  
 
68. The development of the policy will provide an opportunity to consider the impact of 

the policy and strategy on climate change, carbon emissions, congestion and street-
scene.   

 
69. All of these matters will be considered as part of the PTPS development. Where 

relevant an appropriate environmental impact assessment will be completed as 
specific policies and strategies are developed. 

 
Officers to Contact 
 
Ann Carruthers 
Director of Environment and Transport 
Tel:   (0116) 305 7000  
Email:  ann.carruthers@leics.gov.uk  
 
Ian Vears 
Assistant Director of Environment and Transport 
Tel:   (0116) 305 7966  
Email:    ian.vears@leics.gov.uk 

23

mailto:ann.carruthers@leics.gov.uk
mailto:ian.vears@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

 

 

 

Leicestershire County Council 

 

Passenger Transport Policy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

25



 

2 

 

Foreword  

Leicestershire County Council recognises the important role that passenger transport 

services have to play in keeping people and places connected, especially in a rural 

county such as Leicestershire.  Use of such services rather than private car travel 

also helps reduce congestion and limit emissions.  

Facilitating and supporting an appropriate mix of services, working with communities 

and commercial and 3rd sector operators, is a key aim for the Council, against a 

backdrop of a challenging funding situation.  These will meet statutory requirements, 

help Leicestershire County Council deliver on its strategic priorities and outcomes, 

and support the people of Leicestershire in accessing key services.   

Our Passenger Transport Policy and the associated Passenger Transport Strategy 

have been developed to help us to take account of these needs and challenges.   

 

1. The Passenger Transport Framework 

1.1. The framework shown in Figure 1.1 places our approach to supporting 

passenger transport in Leicestershire in context.  The Passenger Transport 

Policy and Strategy sets the context against which service delivery and 

performance will be monitored on an ongoing basis. The framework reflects 

current Government thinking on service development, delivery and 

performance. 

26



 

3 

 

 

Figure 1.1:  Passenger Transport Framework

 

PASSENGER TRANSPORT 

Knowledge 

 Corporate Strategy & Outcomes 

 Local Transport Policy & Plan 

 Legal Requirements 

 Stakeholder Expectations 

Influences 

 External Political & Financial Direction  

 Influences on the Demand for Travel 

 Future Changes in Demographics 

 Supply Market Changes 

  
 

 
DIRECTION 

Passenger Transport Policy 

Passenger Transport Strategy  

PLANNING 

Planning of services 

Influencing of commercial & 3rd sector providers 

Commissioning & procurement of services, where 

necessary 

Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s)  

OUTPUTS 

Passenger transport service operation 

Passenger transport information & 

infrastructure 

OUTCOMES 

Monitored performance  

Customer satisfaction  

REVIEW AND 
CONTINUOUS 

IMPROVEMENT 

ENABLERS 

Political, Corporate 

and Departmental 

Leadership 

Organisational 

Structure 

Financial Systems 

Operational 

Processes 

IT Systems 

Performance 

Monitoring  

Competencies and 

Training 

Risk Management 

Staff Resources 

Market Intelligence 

Financial Resources 

 

 

 

F 

  

27



 

4 

 

 

2. The Document Framework 

2.1. This policy and the associated Passenger Transport Strategy document sit 

within a document framework that is similar to those used in other areas of 

responsibility covered by the Council’s Environment and Transport 

Department.  Figure 2.1 below shows the framework within which these 

documents sit.   

Figure 2.1:  Document Framework 

Passenger Transport Strategy 

A high-level document setting out the strategic direction that we will apply to the 

delivery of the Passenger Transport Policy 

Passenger Transport Policy 

Sets out the links to the County Council’s 2018-2022 Strategic Plan and provides a 

statement of the overall policy objectives. Also sets out high-level principles that will 

be adopted in implementing the policy 

Passenger Transport Operational Handbook 

A more detailed document setting out the processes that will be followed in 

delivering the policy and strategy 

Commissioning, procurement, delivery and monitoring of passenger 

transport services, in association with commercial operators and 

community groups. 

28



 

5 

 

Passenger Transport Policy  

3. Purpose 

3.1. This document sets out the policy objectives and key supporting principles 

that guide the County Council’s support for road-based passenger transport 

services across Leicestershire.  It supersedes the County Council’s 2013 

Local Bus Policy. 

3.2. The policy is intended to meet the statutory duties placed on the authority and 

address priority needs within budget constraints.  The relevant statutory duties 

and powers of the County Council can be summarised as follows: 

 Outside London, operation of local bus services was largely opened to 

commercial market forces by the Transport Act 1985, making bus service 

operation a profit-driven business.  However, Section 63(1)(a) of the Act 

explains that local transport authorities must “secure the provision of such 

public passenger transport services as the council considers it 

appropriate to secure to meet any public transport requirements within 

the county which would not in their view be met apart from any action 

taken by them for that purpose.”  Leicestershire County Council is a local 

transport authority within the meaning of the 1985 Act. 

 The County Council, in common with other transport authorities, is 

required to formulate, from time to time, general policies on the type of 

services it proposes to secure under the above duty – as covered in this 

document and the associated Passenger Transport Strategy document.   

 As a local transport authority the County Council is provided with powers 

by the 1985 Act to: 

• Enter into an agreement providing for service subsidies for the 

purpose of securing any service. 

• Take any measures that appear to be appropriate for the purpose 

of, or in connection with, promoting the availability and operation of 

public passenger transport. 

 The Transport Act 1985 also requires an authority in exercising its power 

to promote the availability of public passenger transport services, to have 

regard to the needs of older or disabled people. 

 The Transport Act 2000 (amended in 2008) introduced the means for 

local authorities and bus operators to enter into bus quality partnerships. 

It also required authorities to consult on, and determine, what local bus 

information should be made available to the public and the way in which 

29



 

6 

 

it should be made available. Where satisfactory arrangements for 

information provision cannot be made with operators, authorities are 

required to make information available. 

 The Bus Services Act 2017 provides local transport authorities with a 

wider set of tools to use to address ‘inefficiencies’ in their local bus 

markets and to work with commercial bus operators to provide better 

local bus services for passengers.  It includes provision for improving 

local bus quality partnerships, making franchising (the London model of 

bus operation) easier, and improving information provision. 

4. Scope 

4.1. This policy is applicable to road-based general passenger transport services 

within Leicestershire.  This covers a broader spectrum than just conventional 

‘big bus’ services and includes passenger transport solutions using a range of 

appropriate smaller vehicles.  Rail travel, commercial taxi and private hire 

services, and specialist transport services for education and social care 

purposes, are not included as these are dealt with in other policy documents.   

5. The Passenger Transport Policy and Supporting 

Principles  

Policy 

PTP1 Leicestershire County Council will continue to encourage 

residents, workers and visitors to use passenger transport 

services in preference to the private car wherever possible, 

because of the environmental and decongestion benefits of doing 

so.  

PTP2 Leicestershire County Council will encourage commercial 

transport operators to meet as many of the access needs of 

Leicestershire residents, workers and visitors as possible through 

provision of commercial transport services.   

PTP3 Leicestershire County Council will encourage community 

organisations to provide transport services for their communities 

that address access needs that are not covered by commercial 

passenger transport services.  The aim will be for such services to 

be self-financing; however, the Council will provide some level of 

grant support (within affordability constraints) to help facilitate the 

establishment and operation of such services where necessary. 

30



 

7 

 

PTP4 In the planning of new development in Leicestershire, the County 

Council will work with district and borough councils (planning 

authorities) to ensure that viable, long term accessibility by 

passenger transport is properly considered and, where 

appropriate, contributions are secured to facilitate such 

accessibility. 

PTP5 Where commercial, development-supported or community 

passenger transport services do not meet high priority needs for 

some residents, the County Council may consider intervening by 

offering organisational, operational or financial support for 

alternative passenger transport services. Leicestershire County 

Council is not a major passenger transport provider to the general 

public and will only consider intervening where there is 

demonstrable and significant unmet demand1 for transport 

services that serve the high priority journey purposes of food 

shopping, primary healthcare, and/or employment and training. 

Financial support will only be offered subject to affordability, 

value-for-money and other criteria defined within the Passenger 

Transport Strategy. 

PTP6 The County Council will provide concessionary travel on 

registered local bus services for older and disabled people in 

accordance with legal requirements. 

PTP7 The County Council will work with commercial and community 

service providers to ensure that up-to-date, clear and accurate 

information is available to the public on passenger transport 

services through a range of appropriate information channels.   

 

Supporting Principles 

SP1 Leicestershire County Council will engage with local communities that 

approach us, to identify any demonstrable and significant unmet 

demand for travel for the high priority purposes identified in PTP 5.  The 

Council will also work with these local communities to discuss ways of 

shaping passenger transport services to best meet local needs. 

SP2 Leicestershire County Council will engage with commercial passenger 

transport service operators to explore ways of shaping their services to 

                                                                 
1
 The level of passenger demand meeting this test will depend on the nature and cost of the particular 

potential service or part-service under consideration. 

31



 

8 

 

meet local needs, and maximising use of those services. 

SP3 Leicestershire County Council will engage with community 

organisations to explore ways of shaping community transport services 

to meet local needs, and of maximising use of those services. 

SP4 The County Council will work with operators and neighbouring 

authorities to seek to encourage use of low emission technologies on 

passenger transport vehicles operated in Leicestershire. 

SP5 The County Council will work with operators and neighbouring 

authorities to seek to promote passenger transport use over the private 

car through behavioural change initiatives.  This will help passenger 

transport services remain or become commercially viable. 

SP6 The County Council will seek additional funding for operating or 

promoting passenger transport through competitive bids to appropriate 

specific funds established by Government from time to time. 

SP7 The County Council will seek user and non-user feedback on 

passenger transport services that are supported financially. 

SP8 The County Council will require operators of financially supported 

services to provide accurate monthly data on use of the services, in 

order to ensure that they still represent value for money.  

SP9 Commercial transport service providers and community transport 

service providers will be expected to take the lead role in providing 

public information on services that they operate. 

SP10 Where the Council supports passenger transport services financially, it 

will seek to maximise value from those services, including looking at 

their potential to carry school and college attendees. 

 

5.1. Implementation of the policy and supporting principles set out above and the 

associated Passenger Transport Strategy will be evidence-based.  Objective 

data and information will be sought to underpin decisions made. 

6. How this Policy Supports the County Council’s 

Strategic Aims 

6.1. Our corporate vision, set out in the County Council’s 2018 - 2022 Strategic 

Plan is for “Leicestershire to have a strong economy that creates the best life 

chances for all. People are well and safe, living as part of great communities 

where people enjoy life with maximum independence in quality homes that are 

32



 

9 

 

affordable. The Council wants to remain a sustainable and successful 

organisation leading modern, highly effective services.” 

6.2. The Passenger Transport Policy is intended to help deliver the five priority 

outcomes that guide all activities of the County Council.  The five priority 

outcomes essentially give a target vision for the future of Leicestershire.  

These are: 

 O1 - Strong Economy 

Leicestershire’s economy is growing and resilient so that people and 

businesses can fulfil their potential. 

 O2 - Wellbeing and Opportunity 

The people of Leicestershire have the opportunities and support they 

need to take control of their health and wellbeing. 

 O3 - Keeping People Safe 

People in Leicestershire are safe and protected from harm. 

 O4 - Great Communities 

Leicestershire communities are thriving and integrated places where 

people help and support each other and take pride in their local area. 

 O5 - Affordable and Quality Homes 

Leicestershire has a choice of quality homes that people can afford. 

6.3. The ways that the Passenger Transport Policy can help deliver these 

outcomes are set out below. 

O1 - Strong Economy 

6.4. The Passenger Transport Policy will help to deliver the right conditions for a 

thriving local economy that can attract inward investment.  In particular, it will 

help: 

 Minimise congestion on Leicestershire’s roads (since passenger transport 

vehicles generally take up less space per person than private cars) with 

the consequent delays and journey time variability that hinder business 

operations. 

 Help to ensure accessibility of workplaces and other economic centres for 

people without access to a private car.  

33



 

10 

 

 Support commercial bus operators, with consequent direct local 

employment benefits. 

O2 - Wellbeing and Opportunity 

6.5. The policy will contribute to wellbeing and good life chances for all by: 

 Helping people in Leicestershire who don’t have access to a private car 

reach key services and facilities by passenger transport, where that is 

possible within affordability and value-for-money criteria. 

 Contributing to accessibility of workplaces and training / education 

centres that help deliver good life chances. 

 Helping to ensure that people are aware of the passenger transport 

opportunities available to them by working with commercial and 

community partners to make information readily available. 

O4 - Great Communities 

6.6. The Passenger Transport Policy will contribute to good quality, thriving 

neighbourhoods by helping to ensure that local communities are encouraged 

and supported in contributing to their own passenger transport solutions. 

O5 - Affordable and Quality Homes 

6.7. The policy will contribute to having affordable and quality homes by working to 

ensure that new housing developments are planned with passenger transport 

links in mind and that developers contribute appropriately to any costs 

associated with providing such links. 

7. Supporting Environment & Transport’s 

Commissioning Strategy 

7.1. The County Council recognises the significant challenge that it faces in 

delivering services against a background of reduced local government 

funding.  The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) sets out this challenge 

and identifies where the County Council intends to deliver efficiencies and 

savings in the medium term.  To help support these changes the County 

Council has developed a Corporate Commissioning and Procurement 

Strategy which was introduced in 2014/15. The Environment & Transport 

Department’s Commissioning Strategy fits within this corporate strategy.  

7.2. The Passenger Transport Strategy that will underpin the implementation of the 

Passenger Transport Policy will support the Environment & Transport 

Department’s Commissioning Strategy by setting out an objective evidence-

based approach for commissioning services.  The Environment & Transport 

34



 

11 

 

Commissioning Strategy explains that whilst the authority’s current Local 

Transport Plan 3 (LTP3) remains in place for the time being, as part of the 

development of service specific plans and strategies, it will be assessed and 

reviewed where appropriate to ensure that it remains fit-for purpose. These 

service specific plans and strategies will augment LTP3. 

8. Policy Review 

8.1. This policy is closely aligned to other developing policy documents across 

Environment and Transport services.  It will require regular review and sense-

checking while these documents are in development. 

8.2. Thereafter, it will be considered for review within 5 years or earlier if there are 

significant changes in local circumstances, national policy or guidance that 

affects passenger transport. 

 

35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

 

 

 

Leicestershire County Council 

 

Passenger Transport Strategy 

37



 

2 

 

Passenger Transport Strategy  

Foreword  

Leicestershire County Council recognises the important role that passenger transport 

services have to play in keeping people and places connected, especially in a rural 

county such as Leicestershire.  Use of such services rather than private car travel 

also helps reduce congestion and limit emissions.  

Facilitating and supporting an appropriate mix of services, working with communities 

and commercial and 3rd sector operators, is a key aim for the Council, against a 

backdrop of a challenging funding situation.  This will help: 

 Meet statutory requirements. 

 Leicestershire County Council deliver on its strategic priorities and outcomes. 

 Support the people of Leicestershire in accessing key services.   

Our Passenger Transport Policy (PTP), and the associated Passenger Transport 

Strategy (PTS) to deliver that policy, set out in this document, have been developed 

to help us to take account of these needs and challenges.   

 

1. The passenger transport framework 

1.1. The framework shown in Figure 1.1 places our approach to supporting 

passenger transport in Leicestershire in context.  The PTP and PTS set the 

context against which service delivery and performance will be monitored on 

an ongoing basis. The framework reflects current Government thinking on 

service development, delivery and performance. 

38



 

3 

 

 

Figure 1.1:  Passenger Transport Framework  

 

PASSENGER TRANSPORT 

Knowledge 

 Corporate Strategy & Outcomes 

 Local Transport Policy & Plan 

 Legal Requirements 

 Stakeholder Expectations 

Influences 

 External Political & Financial Direction  

 Influences on the Demand for Travel 

 Future Changes in Demographics 

 Supply Market Changes 

  
 

 
DIRECTION 

Passenger Transport Policy 

Passenger Transport Strategy  

PLANNING 

Planning of services 

Influencing of commercial & 3rd sector providers 

Commissioning & procurement of services, where 
necessary 

Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s)  

OUTPUTS 

Passenger transport service operation 

Passenger transport information & 

infrastructure 

OUTCOMES 

Monitored performance  

Customer satisfaction  

REVIEW AND 
CONTINUOUS 

IMPROVEMENT 

ENABLERS 

Political, Corporate 

and Departmental 

Leadership 

Organisational 

Structure 

Financial Systems 

Operational 

Processes 

IT Systems 

Performance 

Monitoring  

Competencies and 

Training 

Risk Management 

Staff Resources 

Market Intelligence 

Financial Resources 

 

 

 

  

39



 

4 

 

2. The document framework 

2.1. This PTS document sits within a framework that is similar to those used in 

other areas of responsibility covered by the Council’s Environment and 

Transport Department, as shown in Figure 2.1. 

Figure 2.1:  Document Framework 

3. Purpose and scope 

3.1. This document sets out the overall strategy that Leicestershire County Council 

will adopt to pursue the policy goals and supporting principles set out in our 

PTP.  This strategy is focussed on road-based general passenger transport 

services within Leicestershire, including conventional ‘big bus’ services and 

other passenger transport solutions using a range of appropriate smaller 

vehicles.   

4. Priorities 

4.1. Many people’s passenger transport needs in Leicestershire will be met by 

commercial services.  One of our priorities will therefore be to support the 

commercial market to the extent that we can, by encouraging use of those 

Passenger Transport Strategy 

A high-level document setting out the strategic direction that we will apply to the 

delivery of the Passenger Transport Policy 

Passenger Transport Policy 

Sets out the links to the County Council’s 2018-2022 Strategic Plan and provides a 

statement of the overall policy objectives. Also sets out high-level principles that will 

be adopted in implementing the policy 

Passenger Transport Operational Handbook 

A more detailed document setting out the processes that will be followed in 

delivering the policy and strategy 

Commissioning, procurement, delivery and monitoring of passenger 

transport services, in association with commercial operators and 

community groups. 

40



 

5 

 

services in preference to the private car and by working with operators to 

create the conditions in which commercial services can thrive. Other 

passenger transport needs may be met by community transport services. 

4.2. Where some transport needs cannot be met by the commercial market or by 

community transport services, the council has to consider whether it should 

intervene in the market by offering organisational, operational or financial 

support to any additional passenger transport services.  We therefore need to 

look at what our priorities for such support are, in the context of limited funding 

availability. 

Priority groups 

4.3. As noted in our PTP document, to deliver the Council’s Strategic Plan priority 

outcomes there is emphasis on supporting a high level of health and wellbeing 

(including combating isolation), and on helping deliver the right conditions for 

a thriving local economy.  We also have a statutory obligation to consider the 

needs of ‘elderly and disabled’ people in determining what to support and how 

to provide passenger information.   

4.4. Meeting some key needs of older, disabled or isolated people is therefore 

given higher priority than meeting needs of other sectors of the population. 

We also give higher priority to meeting the needs of people living in 

employment-deprived areas in order to help them access the job market.  This 

prioritisation is in line with Leicestershire’s Third Local Transport Plan (LTP3), 

which emphasises ‘continuing to improve the connectivity and accessibility of 

our existing transport system for vulnerable individuals, groups and 

communities’. 

Access to a local centre 

4.5. Passenger transport can potentially help Leicestershire’s residents access a 

range of important services and facilities.  Where we are considering 

supporting services to supplement those provided commercially, as noted in 

our PTP we will give highest priority to the following journey purposes:  

 Food shopping 

 Primary healthcare1 

 Employment and training 

                                                                 
 

1
 Primary healthcare provides the first point of contact in the NHS and includes general practices 

(GPs), community pharmacies, dental, and optometry (eye health) services (source: 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/participation/get-involved/how/primarycare/ ) 

41

https://www.england.nhs.uk/participation/get-involved/how/primarycare/


 

6 

 

4.6. Our strategy is therefore focussed on supporting passenger transport services 

that are most likely to enable people to access a range of such services and 

facilities. Priority is therefore given to trying to ensure that as many 

Leicestershire residents as possible are able to reach a local centre at least 

once per week.  These are typically locations where people can access 

shopping, primary healthcare, and employment / training (as well as other 

activities).  It must be accepted, however, that in some cases it may not be 

possible to offer a meaningful level of service at acceptable cost. 

Core times 

4.7. Our strategy focuses on supporting passenger transport trips on certain days 

of the week and at certain times.  In general, these are the times when the 

highest priority journey purposes are likely to be accommodated and demand 

is likely to be highest, thus giving the greatest benefit to the greatest number 

of residents within the available resources.  We will only consider supporting 

service runs that depart from or arrive at their first Leicestershire location 

between the following times:   

 Monday to Friday 07.00 to 19.00 

 Saturday 08.00 to 18.00 

4.8. We will particularly consider the need to support services that operate in the 

morning and afternoon peak periods that can support employment and 

training and contribute to congestion reduction. 

5. Elements of our strategy 

5.1. The following sections of the strategy document each deal with one of the 

following areas: 

 Commercial passenger transport services 

 Community transport services 

 Subsidised passenger transport services 

 Intervention in the planning system 

 Passenger information 

 Supporting infrastructure 

 Fares and ticketing 

 Concessionary travel 

 Dealing with service disruptions 

42



 

7 

 

5.2. Transport specifically to serve educational establishments (schools, colleges) 

is not explicitly dealt with in this strategy as it will be covered in another 

County Council policy and strategy.  Nevertheless, we fully recognise that 

integration of general purpose passenger transport provision with education 

transport provision, where possible, can sometimes deliver the best overall 

solution.  In looking at provision of subsidised passenger transport services, 

we will therefore always consider how educational transport needs and other 

transport needs can be served together.  

5.3. Park and Ride bus services are also not dealt with in this strategy, since they 

form part of transport schemes that the County Council (working jointly with 

Leicester City Council) has previously implemented to tackle congestion in 

and around the Leicester urban area. 

6. Commercial passenger transport services 

6.1. The primary providers of passenger transport services in Leicestershire are 

commercial organisations that operate local bus services on a profit-making 

basis, as envisaged when the local bus service market outside London was 

de-regulated in 1985.  It is generally in the interests of the people of 

Leicestershire for commercial bus networks to be attractive, efficient and 

stable.  Such networks can meet the needs of many people in providing a 

means of collective transport that reduces congestion on our roads, limits 

vehicular emissions and provides access to work and life opportunities. 

6.2. While commercial bus services are outside the Council’s direct control, we will 

work in cooperation with all commercial operators, as far as possible, to help 

them deliver high quality and low emission services that meet Leicestershire’s 

needs.  This may include working with operators through bus quality 

partnerships to grow the commercial market.  

6.3. The Bus Services Act 2017 has opened possibilities for new partnership 

models (eg. Advanced Quality Partnerships and Enhanced Partnerships) or 

for bus franchising. We will keep under review whether there is a case for 

moving to one of these alternative models – either on our own or jointly with 

Leicester City Council in the case of the Leicester urban area. This is subject 

to appropriate funding becoming available to deliver these models. 

6.4. Our role will focus on supporting operators in delivering high quality services 

that meet people’s needs.  For example, this may include: 

 Working with operators to ensure that bus stops, shelters and service 

information are provided and maintained.  

 Helping ensure that buses do not suffer unduly from traffic congestion, and 

planned road works, so that they can operate punctually and reliably. 

43



 

8 

 

 Highlighting opportunities for bus operators arising from development 

plans and the potential to grow new markets. 

 Applying for Government funds open to local authorities for investment in 

low emission vehicles or other aspects of bus service provision. 

7. Support for community transport services 

Current schemes 

7.1. Community transport (CT) services currently provide a valuable service for 

people from vulnerable groups in particular (for example, disabled or older 

people with impaired mobility, and people who live in isolation), helping them 

to access key services and activities that they can’t reach using the 

commercial bus network.  These services are provided by community 

organisations, with much of the work involved being undertaken on a 

voluntary basis.   

7.2. Users of CT services pay towards the cost of their travel, but at present this 

does not cover all costs of the service.  Community organisations rely on 

external fund raising to cover the rest of their costs.  Leicestershire County 

Council has historically provided significant grant funding to CT scheme 

operators, and following an in-depth review and consultation process in 2013-

14 this moved towards a system where a defined overall grant fund is 

allocated to scheme operators according to a combination of the number of 

passengers carried and the size of the scheme catchment population for each 

operator.  The NHS (Leicestershire’s Clinical Commissioning Groups) also 

makes a grant contribution to CT services, in recognition of their role in 

connecting people with healthcare. 

7.3. In line with practice in other local authorities, we will encourage existing CT 

scheme operators to become less reliant on Council grants to deliver their 

services, with an ultimate aim of them becoming financially self-sustaining.  

We will also work with the existing operators to encourage them to broaden 

their appeal to population groups other than older and disabled people.   

Potential future community initiatives 

7.4. In communities that currently only have a limited community transport service, 

we will work with groups of local people who may wish to offer some form of 

additional service to encourage and help them.  These may be based on small 

vehicles, including cars, taxis or minibuses. In particular, we will offer advice 

on organisational, operational and funding issues.  Engagement will be 

undertaken by officers where there is clear interest from a community in 

delivering a new community service. 

44



 

9 

 

Financial support 

7.5. Leicestershire County Council will continue to pay a grant to community 

transport organisations based on the number of trips carried and size of 

catchment population.  A defined grant fund will be maintained to this end.  

Part of the grant fund may also be used to help communities establish and 

start to operate any new transport services for local communities. 

8. Financially supported passenger transport services 

8.1. Leicestershire County Council is not a major passenger transport provider.  

However, where commercial bus services or community transport services do 

not meet a community’s high priority transport needs (as defined above), or 

where an existing commercial bus service or community transport service is 

withdrawn or significantly curtailed, the Council may consider intervening by 

offering organisational, operational or financial support for alternative transport 

provision.   

Financial support for bus services 

8.2. Financial support will only be considered where there is demonstrable and 

significant unmet demand2 for passenger transport to meet the high priority 

journey purposes of food shopping, primary healthcare, and/or employment or 

training.  In line with the priorities set out earlier in this strategy document, 

financial support will only be considered for services that arrive at or depart 

from their first or last stop in Leicestershire between the hours of 07.00 and 

19.00 Monday to Friday or between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 on 

Saturday, and that link the area concerned with a nearby local centre3.  Any 

financial support will only be provided if a supported replacement service or 

part-service scores well under Leicestershire’s objective assessment scoring 

scheme as set out below.  Supported services or part-services will normally 

be subject to competitive tender unless consideration of their nature indicates 

that a de minimis4 support arrangement will provide the most effective and 

economic application of funds. 

                                                                 
 

2
 The level of passenger demand meeting this test will depend on the nature and cost of the particular 

potential service or part-service under consideration. 
3
 Leicestershire County Council and Leicester City Council will also work together to procure 

contracted bus services linking the County Council’s Park & Ride sites with Leicester city centre. 
These services are intended to be self-funding. Park & Ride services form part of transport schemes 
that Leicestershire County and Leicester City Councils have previously implemented to tackle 
congestion in the Leicester urban area. Park and Ride services are therefore not covered in any detail 
in this passenger transport strategy document. 
4
 ‘De minimis’ refers to award of small amounts of bus subsidy without tender, as allowed by bus 

service tendering rules set out in Government regulations. This is especially valuable where a 

45



 

10 

 

8.3. All candidate bus services will be put through an objective scoring mechanism 

to capture some of the key aspects of the benefits and costs of supporting that 

service.  This will use three key indicators: 

 Net subsidy cost per passenger-km.  This is the main indicator of value for 

money and compares the cost of supporting the service with the actual or 

forecast demand.  The net cost part of this measure takes account of what 

the cost would otherwise be of arranging alternative school transport 

where the service provides travel to school / college for entitled pupils, and 

of the additional cost of providing free travel to concessionary pass 

holders. 

 Number of Leicestershire residents within the bus service’s catchment 

area5 who don’t have access to another direct service to a local centre by 

other means (e.g. a commercial bus or train service stopping within 800m 

of their home), and who aren’t within reasonable walking distance (800m) 

of a local centre.  This indicator relates to the number of people for whom 

a particular service has a high value.  Where the catchment area includes 

areas of employment deprivation6, people within the employment-deprived 

areas will count double for this measure.  

 Journey purposes served7. Bus services that accommodate a number of 

high priority journey purposes are considered more ‘valuable’ than those 

that focus primarily on lower priority journey purposes. 

8.4. The objective scoring mechanism we will use against each of these measures 

reflects their relative importance and is sufficiently ‘fine-grained’ to enable us 

to differentiate between the merits of different service options.  The different 

indicators will effectively be given different weightings to reflect their relative 

importance, by having scoring scales of 0-20, 0-10, and 0-5 respectively.  The 

scoring mechanism is set out in Table 8-1. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                       
 

variation or addition to an otherwise commercial service is the most effective way of meeting a 
particular need. 
5
 Catchment area defined as within 800m of a bus stop. 

6
 Defined for this purpose as Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) within the 30% most employment-

deprived LSOAs in England, according to the latest Indices of Deprivation published by Government. 
7
 Journey purposes served will be estimated based on best information available from known travel 

patterns, information from operators and, where necessary, user surveys.   

46



 

11 

 

Table 8-1: Scoring mechanism for assessment of the case for supporting a 

bus service 

Indicator Value range8 Score 

Net subsidy cost per 
passenger-km 

£0.80 or more 0 

£0.76 - £0.79 1 

£0.72 - £0.75 2 

£0.68 - £0.71 3 

£0.64 - £0.67 4 

£0.60 - £0.63 5 

£0.56 - £0.59 6 

£0.52 - £0.55 7 

£0.48 - £0.51 8 

£0.44 - £0.47 9 

£0.40 - £0.43 10 

£0.36 - £0.39 11 

£0.32 - £0.35 12 

£0.28 - £0.31 13 

£0.24 - £0.27 14 

£0.20 - £0.23 15 

£0.16 - £0.19 16 

£0.12 - £0.15 17 

£0.08 - £0.11 18 

£0.04 - £0.07 19 

Less than £0.04 20 

Number of < 750 0 

                                                                 
 

8
 Monetary values may be updated by the County Council from time to time to take account of 

inflation.  

47



 

12 

 

Indicator Value range8 Score 

Leicestershire 
residents9 within the 
service’s catchment 
area who don’t have 
access to another 
direct service to a local 
centre by other means 
(eg. commercial bus or 
rail service) and who 
aren’t within 
reasonable walking 
distance (800m) of a 
local centre.  

751-1500 1 

1501-2250 2 

2251-3000 3 

3001-3750 4 

3751-4500 5 

4501-5250 6 

5251-6000 7 

6001-6750 8 

6751-7500 9 

> 7500 10 

Journey purposes 
served (must be more 
than 20% of passenger 
journeys to qualify): 

High priority 

Employment & training 

Food shopping 

Primary healthcare 

Other purposes 

Education 

Other shopping 

Leisure 

Social 

 

Serves 3 high priority 
journey purposes + at 
least 2 others 

5 

Serves 3 high priority 
journey purposes and 
<2 others  

4 

Serves 2 high priority 
journey purposes + at 
least 2 others 

4 

Serves 2 high priority 
purposes and <2 
others 

3 

Serves 1 high priority 
purpose plus at least 2 
others 

3 

Serves 1 high priority 
purpose and <2 others 

2 

Serves at least 2 other 
purposes 

1 

Serves <2 other 
purposes 

0 

                                                                 
 

9
 People within employment-deprived areas will count double for this indicator. 

48



 

13 

 

 

8.5. Once a service has been through the scoring mechanism, the resultant overall 

score (out of 35) will be viewed in the context of a case-for-support rating.  

This is shown in Table 8-2.  This information will be used by officers to make 

the decision on whether to financially support a particular service. Any 

decision on the future of services will consider the implications of service 

removal on the overall provision of passenger transport in the local area. 

Table 8-2: Case-for-support ratings 

Overall service score Case-for-support rating 

25 or more Strong 

20-24 Marginal 

<20 Weak 

 

8.6. The County Council will normally put out to competitive tender any passenger 

transport service where its objective assessment concludes that financial 

support is required, justifiable and affordable.  ‘De minimis’ awards without 

tender will only be made where there is a clear value-for-money case for 

doing so. 

Lifeline DRT services 

8.7. Where an existing bus service scores poorly under the objective scoring 

mechanism and is therefore withdrawn or curtailed, Leicestershire County 

Council will consider the case for providing a localised ‘lifeline’ demand 

responsive transport (DRT) service. Such lifeline services recognise the 

importance of passenger transport links in combating isolation.  The best 

candidate service option will be determined by officers (in collaboration with 

community representatives, where possible) and will normally be the option 

that offers the best value within affordability constraints.   

8.8. Such services will be operated by contracted small vehicle or taxi operators 

and will only be considered where: 

 There is demonstrable evidence of an appreciable number of people who 

were previously reliant on a bus service (that is now withdrawn or 

curtailed): 

o who cannot reasonably use other means of travel (eg. community 

transport, private car, car-sharing, commercial taxi/minicab, 

walking, cycling or Wheels to Work) for high priority journey 

49



 

14 

 

purposes (as defined in section 4 of this document) to a local centre 

at core times; and  

o where the net cost per passenger-km of providing such a service 

can be kept below £1.2010. 

8.9. Where these criteria are met, and such a service is affordable within budget 

constraints, the County Council will attempt through competitive tendering to 

procure an appropriate DRT service.  The case for maintaining such DRT 

services will be reviewed at least every three years.  

9. Influencing through the planning system 

9.1. In the planning of new development in Leicestershire, the County Council will 

work with District Councils (planning authorities) and development promoters 

(developers) to seek to ensure the delivery of planned development brought 

forward in locations that offer genuine opportunities to be accessed by a 

range of travel modes. This includes ensuring that commercially viable, long 

term accessibility by passenger transport to key services and facilities is 

appropriately and properly considered. This will be done alongside 

consideration of other sustainable travel modes (e.g. cycling and walking).   

9.2. Where appropriate, we will either: 

 encourage and look to developers to engage with passenger transport 

operators to seek to develop and implement a passenger transport 

solution that aligns with the type and nature of the development to be 

served and which is likely to be commercially viable and sustainable over 

the long term (we will seek appropriate legal agreements to ensure that 

the solution is secured); or 

 seek developer contributions to facilitate such accessibility through an 

agreement under the Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990.  The size of contribution sought for all sustainable travel modes will 

depend on the size, nature and location of the proposed development. 

9.3. S106 contributions may be sought for revenue funding support for a fixed 

period of either an existing passenger transport service that might be altered 

to suit the development; or for a new service.  However, this will only be 

sought where there is a reasonable prospect that the service alteration or new 

service can become self-funding due to patronage growth at the end of the 

                                                                 
 

10
 Monetary values may be updated by the County Council from time to time to take account of 

inflation. 

50



 

15 

 

defined period.  Contributions may also be sought for passenger transport 

infrastructure (e.g. bus stops or shelters, passenger information systems).  

9.4. In wording the S106 agreement or seeking development conditions, the 

County Council will work with planning officers to include sufficiently flexible 

wording, such that if the situation changes before the development is built the 

contribution can still be used on other sustainable transport interventions to 

achieve the same aims, where other feasible options exist.  Then, for 

example, if the specific bus service they might contribute to is withdrawn or 

changed, the funding can be re-deployed – e.g. to improve cycling or walking 

links with a development site beyond the identified lifetime of such a 

supported service. 

9.5. Where funding for passenger transport is sought from a developer, we will 

work with planning officers to ensure that this is taken into account in the 

required Travel Plan for the development.  This should help ensure that best 

advantage is taken of any passenger transport services by the development 

occupants. 

10. Passenger information 

10.1. Leicestershire County Council recognises that the provision of service 

information and marketing can encourage more travel by passenger transport, 

which in turn sustains services and supports network enhancements. We also 

have a statutory duty to determine what local bus information should be made 

available and to make information available if operators do not do so. 

10.2. The primary responsibility for providing passenger transport service 

information will lie with the operators.  However, we will work in conjunction 

with commercial bus operators and Traveline11 to ensure that information on 

local bus services is provided for Leicestershire’s workers, residents and 

visitors.  Where appropriate, this will be done through any relevant bus quality 

partnership arrangements.  We will also work with relevant community groups 

and organisations to help them publicise the community transport services 

that they operate. 

10.3. Information provision will primarily focus on: 

 What services operate  

 Where services run 

                                                                 
 

11
 Traveline is the national public transport enquiry service 

51



 

16 

 

 How to book services that are not conventional local bus services (e.g. 

community transport or DRT) 

 Service times and frequency 

 Current status of services (e.g. any service disruptions) 

 Days of operation 

 Costs / fares and ticket products 

 Service provider contact details 

10.4. Our aim is to ensure that information is: 

 Comprehensive and covers all services 

 Accurate, up-to-date and reliable 

 Available at all key stages of planning and making a journey 

 Accessible by people with disabilities 

10.5. Information may be provided through a number of media, as set out below.  

We will liaise with commercial operators to try to ensure that our respective 

information sources are complementary rather than duplicative.   

10.6. Printed information – In general, printed service leaflets may be provided by 

service operators.  Through our contracting processes for procuring supported 

services, we will encourage operators to provide printed leaflets that fit with 

the style used for their commercial services.  We will encourage operators to 

conform with current best practice.  

10.7. Websites and apps– We will encourage operators to make information 

available to passengers through their own websites and apps.  We will also 

provide service information to Traveline, so that it can be accessed by 

passengers through telephone enquiries, through the Traveline website, or 

through apps that use the Traveline data feed.  We will also continue to keep 

service information up-to-date in Leicestershire’s ‘Choose How You Move’ 

multi-modal journey planner.  The Leicestershire County Council website will 

signpost passengers to these sources of information. 

10.8. Information at bus stops – We will work with bus operators to ensure that 

they provide accurate and up-to-date timetable information at all bus stops 

within Leicestershire. This information will be provided in large print, as far as 

reasonably practicable, and we will work with operators to ensure that 

principles set out in ATCO best practice guidance are followed as far as 

possible.  

52



 

17 

 

10.9. Real time information (RTI) displays – As far as possible within budget 

constraints, we will provide real time information displays at selected bus 

stops.  Selection of sites for RTI displays will be planned in cooperation with 

neighbouring authorities for cross-boundary services and with bus operators. 

10.10. We will continue to monitor usage and user satisfaction with passenger 

information provision actions, and will work with service operators to adjust 

and fine-tune them based on those actions.  This will meet the Transport Act 

2000 requirement to consult on information provision. 

11. Supporting infrastructure 

11.1. Leicestershire County Council will continue to provide and maintain 

infrastructure that facilitates passenger transport use, in cooperation with 

operators where appropriate.  This includes bus stop poles/flags and shelters, 

information display cases at stops, and interchange facilities.  Selection of 

locations for any new bus stops and shelters will follow good practice and will 

particularly consider accessibility for people with impaired mobility.  

11.2. Responsibility for maintenance of bus stop poles/flags, display cases and 

shelters may, by agreement with all operators concerned, be delegated to bus 

operators.  Where such agreement cannot be reached, Leicestershire County 

Council will retain the responsibility for maintaining the infrastructure. 

11.3. Interchange facilities will continue to be provided at key locations where 

people change between different bus services or between the bus and other 

forms of transport. As a minimum, these will be provided with a timetable 

information case and a cover to protect passengers from inclement weather. 

11.4. The County Council will also continue to work closely with service operators to 

identify any problems on the road network for passenger transport vehicles 

that could be improved by targeted infrastructure improvements.  These might 

range from measures to reduce junction delays at peak times to filling in pot 

holes.  Any such improvements will be considered based on the potential 

benefit and cost of making the improvement and of affordability.  

12. Fares and ticketing 

12.1. Bus fares for commercial services and CT fares are primarily a matter for the 

operators of those services.  As part of our cooperative working with local bus 

operators in Leicestershire (through bus quality partnerships, or outside those 

frameworks) we will encourage them to keep fares as low as possible within 

commercial viability.  We will also encourage operators to offer discounted 

fare products such as day, weekly or monthly tickets and to participate in 

multi-operator ticketing to help grow the overall bus market and reduce the 

53



 

18 

 

cost of use where more than one operator’s services are used in making 

journeys by connection.  

12.2. Bus fares for supported services will be set in line with those on commercial 

services in the area.  On supported local bus service contracts children’s fares 

will be available at all times. Children are defined by age as being 5 to 15 

inclusive. Children under the age of 5 will be carried free of charge provided 

they do not occupy a seat to the exclusion of a fare-paying passenger.  We 

will monitor the fares on supported services operating in Leicestershire to 

ensure fairness and consistency. 

12.3. Multi operator tickets are tickets that can be used on buses provided by 

more than one service operator.  They can make bus use more convenient 

and affordable, and can help attract new passengers to bus services.  

12.4. The current Leicester One Card that allows purchase of multi-operator weekly 

tickets and use within a defined ‘flexi-zone’ (centred on the city of Leicester 

but extending out into parts of the county) is an example of a current multi-

operator ticket.  We strongly support multi operator ticketing as a way of 

growing the bus travel market and will work cooperatively with operators to 

pursue any opportunities to provide additional schemes in the future.   

12.5. Smart ticketing is where a ticket is stored electronically on a microchip rather 

than printed on a paper ticket. This microchip can be embedded in a 

smartcard or on a smart phone. Smart ticketing is also now achievable using 

contactless EMV bank cards (rather than dedicated transport smart cards), as 

used in London. 

12.6. Smart ticketing opens up alternative ways of buying, collecting and using 

tickets that are often easier for passengers and also reduce boarding times at 

bus stops.  Leicestershire County Council strongly supports smart ticketing 

(particularly where used in conjunction with multi-operator ticketing) and is 

willing to work with operators through partnership arrangements or other 

means to realise greater use of smart tickets in Leicestershire. 

13. Concessionary travel 

13.1. We will continue to fund the statutory English National Concessionary Travel 

Scheme for older and disabled people boarding local buses in Leicestershire.  

This gives free bus travel within the nationally-defined days and times for 

eligible older and disabled people. 

13.2. We will also continue with a discretionary enhancement to the scheme in 

Leicestershire, provided it remains affordable.  This allows concessionary 

pass holders to travel on Park & Ride buses in the county (which are not 

54



 

19 

 

covered by the mandatory national concession) for a reduced fare on 

production of their pass. 

14. Dealing with service disruptions 

14.1. The County Council understands that road works on the highway network can 

cause service disruption and delays to passenger transport services. The 

majority of these works are undertaken by utility companies, the County 

Council or developers.  

14.2. Through the introduction of a new Road Works Permit Scheme the County 

Council will seek to improve the co-ordination, control and communication of 

road works on the highway. Experience has shown that a permit scheme can 

reduce disruption for passenger transport operators caused by road works 

and minimise the impact these works have on service reliability and 

punctuality. As part of the new Road Works Permit Scheme promoters of road 

works in Leicestershire will be advised if their proposed works are on a 

passenger transport route. 

14.3. Where planned road works may affect passenger transport services, we will 

expect that road works promoters: 

 Engage early with and provide timely, clear, accurate and appropriate 

information to stakeholders, including public transport operators; and 

 Provide evidence that they have considered and understood the breadth/ 

impact of their proposals on all road users, including passenger transport 

users, and have adequately mitigated any adverse avoidable impacts 

before they are implemented. 

14.4. In most cases, we would expect operators to modify their service routing 

temporarily (including suspension of stops) to accommodate the works, and 

publicise the temporary changes accordingly.  In a minority of cases the 

passenger transport services may need to be curtailed temporarily. 

14.5. In all cases of passenger transport service disruption, the works promoter will 

be expected to consider the needs of users of those services and if necessary 

put forward a proposed alternative solution (in cooperation with service 

operators and the County Council) for meeting those needs.  This will need to 

take account of: 

 The nature and extent of the works  

 Their duration 

 The availability of alternatives 

55



 

20 

 

14.6. The County Council will seek to obtain any relevant costs associated with 

such solutions from the works promoter.  

14.7. Where the duration of disruption is one weekday (excluding public holidays) or 

less or the extent of disruption is minor, there may be no need for alternative 

service provision, provided the service disruption is appropriately publicised.  

14.8. Passenger service operators will be encouraged to access the road works 

website (www.roadworks.org) regularly to obtain up to date information 

regarding all known roadworks in the county, to enable collaborative and 

effective service planning.  

56



APPENDIX C 

 

SECOND REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW PANEL ON THE 

COUNTY COUNCIL’S 95% BUS COVERAGE POLICY 2013 

 

B. Revised Policy on the Supported Bus Network 

 

18. The Panel is recommending that the following be adopted as the future policy:- 

 

a) The County Council will seek to meet the essential transport needs of 

Leicestershire residents through the provision of transport solutions; 

 

b) The delivery of these transport solutions will be subject to periodic tests on 

levels of use and affordability and value for money; 

 

c) Passenger transport will be provided by a mix of conventional bus services 

for higher demand areas, supplemented by provision of less frequent 

services by minibuses and taxi type vehicles (in areas of low usage); 

 

d) Fares on all services will be broadly comparable with the fares charged on 

commercial bus services. 

 

19. Essential transport needs of residents are defined as follows (all subject to a test 

around value for money): 

 

• Shopping and Personal Business; 

• Healthcare; 

• Social Activity and Wellbeing; 

• Work. 

 

20. Other needs such as providing access to training and education, tackling 

congestion and reducing carbon emissions, will be met wherever possible, but 

would not be classified as priorities when determining the commissioning and 

design of transport provision. The type of transport solution provided would be 

on the basis of value for money and affordability in proportion to identified 

demand. 

 

21. The Panel noted that the proposed policy set out above had a strategic fit with 

the Local Transport Plan 3. The LTP3 identifies six overall priorities, three of 

which are relevant when considering public transport, viz:- 

 

• Supporting the local economy; 

• Encouraging active and sustainable travel; 

• Improving connectivity and accessibility. 

57



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D 

 

The Council’s legal duty regarding subsidised bus services 

 

The Council’s legal duty in relation to subsidised bus services is outlined in the 

Transport Act 1985, Section 63(1) (a), which explains that local transport authorities 

must: 

 

“secure the provision of such public passenger transport services as the council 

consider it appropriate to secure to meet any public transport requirements within the 

county which would not in their view be met apart from any action taken by them for 

that purpose.” 

 

In essence, this means that the Council must: 

 

1) identify public transport requirements which would not otherwise be met and then 

  

2) once identified, secure what is appropriate. It does not mean that the Council is 

obliged to subsidise services. 

 

However, under Section 63(8), the Council has a duty to have regard to the transport 

needs of members of the public who are elderly or disabled when exercising the s63 

(1) duty referred to above. 

 

Under Section 88, in exercising/performing our functions with respect to securing 

provision of public passenger transport services the Council must cooperate with: 

 

(i) other authorities exercising/performing those functions; 

 

(ii) other local authorities, in relation to expenditure on transport for the purposes of 

or in connection with the exercise/performance of their education and/or social care 

functions, so as to secure, in the interests of the ratepayers in our areas, best value 

for money from our expenditure, taken as a whole. 

 

Under Section 92, in the exercise and performance of our functions in relation to 

agreements providing for service subsidies, the Council must have regard to the 

interests of the public and of persons providing public passenger transport services 

in our area. As part of this process, Councils are entitled to take into account the 

funds that are available to them. 

59



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX E  

 

List of current contracted Local Bus Services 

 

Service Operator Route 

14 & 15 Centrebus Melton Town Services 

7 & 66 Arriva Hinckleybus Hinckley Town 

154 Centrebus Leicester - Loughborough 

8 Centrebus Loughborough - Melton 

X84 Arriva Hinckleybus Leicester - Rugby 

24 Centrebus Melton - Bottesford/Bingham 

X55 Arriva Hinckleybus Hinckley - Leicester (Fosse Park) 

100 Centrebus Leicester - Melton (south of A607) 

120 Roberts Travel Group Leicester - Coalville 

40 Centrebus Circleline (outer ring) 

27 Roberts Travel Group Loughborough - Thurmaston 

44 Centrebus Foxton - Harborough Fleckney 

155 Roberts Travel Group Coalville - Castle Donington 

129 Paul S. Winson Ashby - Loughborough  

8 Arriva Hinckleybus Lutterworth - Hinckley 

747 Centrebus Leicester - Uppingham 

113 Centrebus Melton - Oakham  

661 Murphy's Taxis Lutterworth - Rural Villages 

X6 Centrebus Bottesford - Grantham (Muston diversion) 

3 & 66 Arriva Hinckleybus Hinckley Town + Dadlington Diversion 

3 & 13 Paul S. Winson Loughborough Town Services 

154 Centrebus Leicester - Quorn 

23 & 25 Centrebus Melton - Stathern/Nether Broughton 

22B Centrebus Leicester - Birstall 

128 Centrebus Leicester - Melton (north of A607) 

X6 Centrebus Bottesford - Grantham (am school journey) 

22B Centrebus Leicester - Birstall (Saturday) 

7 Roberts Travel Group Measham - Atherstone  

33 Centrebus Market Harborough Town Services 

X6 Centrebus Bottesford - Grantham (pm school journey) 

55 & 56 Centrebus Melton - Grantham  

 

 

 

 

 

 

61



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX F 

Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy Framework 

 

Enablers 

Political, Corporate 

and Departmental 

Leadership. 

 

Organisational 

Structure 

 

Financial Systems 

 

Operational Processes 

 

IT Systems 

 

Performance 

Monitoring 

 

Competencies and 

Training 

 

Risk Management 

 

Staff resources 

 

Market Intelligence 

 

Financial Resources 

 

63



This page is intentionally left blank



Have your say 
Proposed changes to how we 
support passenger transport 
services in Leicestershire

Give us your views
Consultation on the draft passenger transport policy and strategy

Online: www.leicestershire.gov.uk/passenger-transport-consultation

For general enquiries or comments about this consultation  
phone 0116 305 0002 or email ptps@leics.gov.uk

Public consultation: Please submit your views by midnight on 
Wednesday 13 June 2018

Leicestershire’s future 
The plan for change

65

HHUDSON
Text Box
APPENDIX G1



2  Leicestershire’s future

Why change?
Leicestershire County Council has to consider if and 
how it can meet a need for public transport where 
this need cannot be met in other ways. 

The vast majority of road-based passenger transport 
in Leicestershire is provided by commercial bus 
operators (such as Arriva or First Buses) at no cost  
to the tax payer.

Our current policy sets out that, where appropriate, 
we would meet daytime public transport requirements 
not met by the commercial bus network by: 

• subsidising conventional bus services or 

• through less frequent minibuses and demand 
responsive transport (DRT) type services in areas 
of low usage.

Since the policy was last reviewed in 2013,  
the commercial network has changed, with many 
areas seeing less frequent services. 

For some services, the commercial operators have 
warned they would have to withdraw the service 
unless the council subsidises the route. 

The Bus Services Act 2017 gives local transport 
authorities more tools to address inefficiencies in the 
local bus market and to work with commercial bus 
operators to improve services - although no extra 
money has been made available by government to 
support this.

In areas of lower usage, where services are not 
commercially viable, bus services can be a relatively 
expensive and inflexible way to transport people. 
Although some subsidised bus services are well used 
and provide reasonable value for money, usage of 
other services has declined or continues to be low. 
These services do not present best use of public 
money and alternative transport solutions should be 
considered. 

of bus journeys 
are on commercial 
operators

94%

There are
13 million
journeys by  
bus each year

66



Leicestershire’s future  3

Over a number of years, there has continued to be an 
increase in the cost of supporting passenger transport. 
These costs include: 

• financial subsidies for some routes 

• provision of infrastructure and passenger 
information 

• the cost of concessionary travel for older and 
disabled people 

At the same time, the county council has to make 
£50m of savings over the next four years. This is on 
top of the £178m saved since 2010 - which means 
difficult decisions being taken about services in all 
areas of the council’s work.

It is therefore essential that we have a clear policy 
and strategy that will allow us to take decisions 
about supporting passenger transport in a clear and 
consistent way that ensures the most efficient use 
of reducing resources, while meeting our statutory 
duties.

The proposed passenger transport policy and 
strategy sets out how the county council  
would go about meeting its statutory duties and 
deliver value-for-money passenger transport 
services for Leicestershire.

What is  
Demand  
Responsive 
Transport?
It is a form of pre-booked 
transport using small 
vehicles rather than buses, 
such as taxis or minibuses. 
They have some things in 
common with bus services 
such as the fares charged 
but with differences such as 
only running when booked.

67



4  Leicestershire’s future

What is the council consulting on?
The county council is proposing a passenger transport policy and strategy to ensure it meets its statutory 
duties and delivers value for money passenger transport services for Leicestershire residents.

The new policy and strategy would replace the current 2013 ‘Revised Policy on the Supported  
Bus Network’.

We want your feedback about the draft policy and strategy proposals - the main points of which  
are summarised in this document.

What is our statutory duty?

Leicestershire County Council, as the local transport authority has a responsibility to:

“secure the provision of such public passenger transport services as the council consider it 
appropriate to secure to meet any public transport requirements within the county which 
would not in their view be met apart from any action taken by them for that purpose.” 
(Transport Act 1985) 

Put simply, this means that the council must:
1) identify public transport requirements which would not otherwise be met 

2) consider what would be appropriate services to meet those needs

We welcome your views on what this means in practice: 

• Which needs could only be met by the council? 

• What represents good use of public money in supporting those needs to be met? 

• What is appropriate for the council to provide in the current financial climate?

Our duties with regards to passenger transport are set out in more detail in the draft  
passenger transport policy.

68



Leicestershire’s future  5

What services are covered by the proposed passenger 
transport policy & strategy?
The proposed policy and strategy focusses on a wide range of public passenger transport services.  
This includes traditional bus services and DRT schemes, but also support given to community transport 
providers and other passenger transport solutions using smaller vehicles, including cars (such as good 
neighbour schemes and car share schemes). These transport services are described in more detail 
elsewhere in this document.

The proposed policy and strategy also sets out the council’s approach to a range of related issues,  
such as providing passenger information services, fares and ticketing, providing and maintaining bus 
stops and bus lanes, and other infrastructure to support passenger transport.

The draft passenger transport policy sets out the objectives and supporting principles that would guide 
the county council’s support for passenger transport services across Leicestershire. 

The draft passenger transport strategy sets out how the policy objectives may be delivered and what 
support the council will offer in the following areas:

• Commercial passenger transport services

• Community transport services

• Subsidised passenger transport services

• Intervention in the planning system

• Passenger information

• Supporting infrastructure 

• Fares and ticketing

• Concessionary travel

• Dealing with service disruptions

The passenger transport policy and strategy does not cover:

- Park and Ride

- Home-to-School Transport

- Rail travel 

- Commercial taxi and private hire services

- Specialist transport services for education and social care purposes

The proposed changes set out in this consultation document therefore do not apply to  
these services.

69



6  Leicestershire’s future

What do the draft passenger transport policy  
and strategy say?
Both documents can be read in full at www.leicestershire.gov.uk/passenger-transport-consultation

Key elements of the proposed policy and strategy are:

• The policy reflects that commercial transport operators provide the vast majority of bus services 
in the county and meet many people’s needs, so the council aims to work with operators to help 
shape services to meet local needs and to maximise use of those services.

• The county council may intervene by offering support for alternative passenger transport services 
to meet high priority needs that are not met by the commercial bus network. 

• Any decision to intervene through financial support of services would be based on evidence of 
significant unmet demand for access to services and facilities, and would be subject to a  
value-for-money test. 

• Priority would be given to connecting people to food shopping, primary healthcare and 
employment and training opportunities at a local centre. 

• Priority would also be given to the needs of elderly, disabled or isolated people. 

• We would only consider supporting services that depart from or arrive at their first Leicestershire 
location between the following times: 

Monday to Friday 07.00am to 19.00pm

Saturday 08.00am to 18.00pm

• The county council would continue to provide financial support to community transport services 
and encourage them to become more self-sustaining.

• The county council would seek to encourage and support community organisations to provide 
local transport solutions that address access needs that are not covered by commercial or 
alternative transport services. 

70



Leicestershire’s future  7

What would that mean in practice for current services?
If the draft policy and strategy were to be adopted without changes, this would mean the following:

Commercial services
Most bus services in the county are provided by commercial operators. These services are outside of the 
control of the county council. We would work with the commercial operators to ensure the commercial 
network is attractive, efficient and stable. This may include working with operators to ensure bus stops, 
shelters and service information are provided and maintained. We can also help ensure buses don’t 
suffer unduly from traffic congestion and roadworks, and to help operators reduce vehicle emissions. 

Where a bus operator decides to make changes to commercial services that would have a detrimental 
impact on the access to priority services for Leicestershire residents, the county council would work with 
operators to find ways to reduce that impact. The county council would only provide financial support if 
the proposed criteria for financial support to bus services is met. These criteria are set out on page 13 of  
this document.

Community Transport services
Community Transport (CT) services currently provide a valuable service for people from vulnerable 
groups, for example, disabled or older people with impaired mobility, and people who live in isolation,  
by helping them to access services and activities which they can’t reach using the commercial bus 
network or links that are not provided by the commercial network. 

CT services are provided by community organisations, with much of the work involved being undertaken 
on a voluntary basis. Although users of CT services pay towards the cost of their travel, providers rely on 
external fund-raising to cover the rest of their costs. 

The county council will continue to pay grant funding to community transport organisations based on 
the number of trips carried and size of catchment population. Some CT services also receive grants from 
Leicestershire’s Clinical Commissioning Groups (NHS) to connect people with healthcare.

We will encourage existing CT scheme operators to become more financially self-sustaining and to 
broaden their appeal to population groups other than older and disabled people. 

71



8  Leicestershire’s future

Local transport solutions
In communities that currently only have a limited passenger transport service, we will work with local 
organisations and groups of local people who are interested in offering some form of additional service. 
These may be based on small vehicles, including cars, taxis or minibuses. 

Examples include car sharing and good neighbour schemes, but could also include minibus 
journeys sponsored by local businesses and/or parish councils. In particular, we will offer advice on 
organisational, operational and funding issues. 

We may also offer grant funding to help communities establish and start to operate any new transport 
services for local communities where essential transport needs are not met by other services and this 
provides value for money.

Subsidised bus services
The main impact of the proposed policy and strategy will be a likely reduction in the number of 
subsidised bus services. However, this does not mean that areas currently served by such buses would 
no longer have a passenger transport service in future.

For bus services that the council currently supports financially, contracts come to an end in June 2019. 
Should the policy and strategy be approved, the county council will review these services against the 
proposed criteria for financial support to bus services. The proposed criteria are set out on page 13 of 
this document. 

Should continuing to provide a subsidised bus service no longer be appropriate, we would engage with 
local communities to consider alternative service provision, such as local transport solutions or lifeline 
demand responsive transport. 

For illustration purposes, we have provided a table on the following page which shows how the 
current subsidised services would score based on costs and performance as at January 2018. It is 
important to note that bus services are continually subject to operational or market changes, so if 
the PTPS is adopted, the resultant table on the following page may look different at the time of the 
actual review.

72



Leicestershire’s future  9

Illustration of potential impact
Likelihood of contracted services being (dis)continued if assessed against the proposed criteria for 
financial support to bus services, based on January 2018 costs and performance. 

(Green means ‘likely to be continued’, amber means ‘continuation at risk’, red means ‘likely to be 
discontinued and alternative local community or demand responsive transport solution be considered.’)

Service* Operator Route Subsidy 
Level Journeys covered by subsidy

14 & 15 Centrebus Melton Town Services Partial

14 (Melton Valley Road - Melton 
Centre) Final pm journey Monday - 
Friday, All Saturday journeys
15 (Melton Dieppe Way - Melton 
Centre) First am journey Monday  
- Friday, All Saturday journeys 

7 & 66 Arriva 
Hinckleybus Hinckley Town Partial

66 (Hinckley Wykin Rd  
- Hinckley Centre) 3 out of 5  
off-peak return journeys
7 (Hinckley Trent Road  
- Hinckley Centre) 4 out of 12  
off-peak return journeys

154 Centrebus Leicester - Loughborough 
(Saturday) Partial All Saturday journeys only

8 Centrebus Loughborough - Melton Full All journeys

X84 Arriva 
Hinckleybus Leicester - Rugby (Saturday) Partial All Saturday journeys only

24 Centrebus Melton - Bottesford/Bingham Full All journeys

X55 Arriva 
Hinckleybus Hinckley - Leicester (Fosse Park) Partial

First am journey (Hinckley - Leicester)
First am journey (Sapcote - Hinckley)
Final pm journey (Leicester - Hinckley)

100 Centrebus Leicester - Melton (south of A607) Full All journeys

120 Roberts 
Travel Group Leicester - Coalville Full All journeys

40 Centrebus Circleline (outer ring) Partial
Provision from circa 14:45 onwards 
(Monday - Friday) 
All Saturday journeys

27 Roberts 
Travel Group Loughborough - Thurmaston Full All journeys

44 Centrebus Harborough - Fleckney Partial Most journeys (NB some additional 
provision is provided commercially)

155 Roberts 
Travel Group Coalville - Castle Donington Full All journeys

129 Paul S. 
Winson

Ashby - Loughborough 
(Community Bus Partnership) Full All journeys

8 Arriva 
Hinckleybus Lutterworth - Hinckley Full All journeys

747 Centrebus Leicester - Uppingham Partial Off-peak provision (Monday - Friday)  
All Saturday journeys

73



10  Leicestershire’s future

Service* Operator Route Subsidy 
Level Journeys covered by subsidy

113 Centrebus Melton - Oakham  
(Community Bus Partnership) Full All journeys

661 Murphy’s 
Taxis Lutterworth - Rural Villages Full All journeys

X6 Centrebus Bottesford - Grantham (Muston 
diversion) Partial One return journey per day  

(Muston - Grantham)

3 & 66 Arriva 
Hinckleybus

Hinckley Town + Dadlington 
Diversion Partial

66 (Dadlington diversion)  
All journeys
3 (Burbage Three Pots - Hinckley)  
All journeys

3 & 13 Paul S. 
Winson Loughborough Town Services Full All journeys

154 Centrebus Leicester - Quorn Partial Single journey - 18:25 departure 
Monday - Friday (Leicester - Quorn)

23 & 25 Centrebus Melton - Stathern/ 
Nether Broughton Full All journeys

22B Centrebus Leicester - Birstall  
(Early and late journeys) Partial

First and last return journeys,  
Monday - Friday (Birstall - Leicester)
First and last return journeys,  
Monday - Friday (Leicester - Birstall)

128 Centrebus Leicester - Melton (north of A607) Full All journeys

X6 Centrebus Bottesford - Grantham  
(am school journey) Partial

am school journey;  
this is duplicate provision (over and 
above the commercial service)

22B Centrebus Leicester - Birstall (Saturday) Partial All Saturday journeys

7 Roberts 
Travel Group

Measham - Atherstone 
(Community Bus Partnership) Full All journeys

33 Centrebus Market Harborough Town Services Full All journeys

X6 Centrebus Bottesford - Grantham  
(pm school journey) Partial

pm school journey;  
this is duplicate provision (over and 
above the commercial service)

55 & 56 Centrebus Melton - Grantham  
(Community Bus Partnership) Full All journeys

* Services are listed as they are currently contracted. Any local services not listed are currently operated 
on a commercial basis. 

We are not proposing to end any of the services in the table above at this time.  
Any decision about the future of these services would be based on the final policy and strategy and 
would be based on data collected as part of the review of the service at the time individual contracts 
come to an end. Any decision on the future of services would also consider the implications on the 
overall passenger transport in the local area and the impact on people who are reliant on the service 
and cannot reasonably use other means of travel.

74



Leicestershire’s future  11

Lifeline demand responsive transport services
These services are currently operated by contracted small vehicle or taxi operators in areas where there 
are no alternative passenger services to meet a significant demand. These services provide a lifeline 
service for people in areas without bus services who cannot reasonably use other means of travel  
(eg. community transport, private car, car-sharing, commercial taxi/minicab, walking, cycling or Wheels 
to Work) for high priority journey purposes to a local centre at core times. The case for maintaining such 
DRT services will be reviewed at least every three years.

Where subsidising a bus service is not or no longer considered appropriate, we would take into 
consideration the number of people who were reliant on the bus service and who cannot reasonably 
use other means of travel. In such cases, the council will consider providing a localised ‘lifeline’ demand 
responsive transport (DRT) service - where there is significant need - and costs do not exceed £1.20 per 
passenger-km. 

What else does the passenger transport policy and 
strategy cover?
The policy and strategy also sets out the council’s intentions for a range of other passenger transport 
related issues. These intentions are mostly a continuation of current practice.

Securing passenger transport 
services for new housing 
developments

Working with planning authorities, developers and transport 
operators to ensure new housing developments have access 
to passenger transport services.

Fares and ticketing

Working with transport operators to keep fares low and 
consistent, encourage schemes that enable tickets to 
be used on buses from different operators and support 
introduction of electronic ‘smart ticketing’.

Concessionary travel
We will continue to fund the national concessionary travel 
scheme for older and disabled people.

Passenger information
Working with transport operators and Traveline to ensure 
that information on local services is provided and easily 
accessible.

Dealing with service 
disruptions

Working with operators to minimise service disruptions  
from planned roadworks.

75



12  Leicestershire’s future

How the consultation will work
The consultation runs from 21 March and ends at midnight on 13 June, 2018.
During the consultation, we will be holding a series of meetings to provide you with information to help 
you submit your views on the proposed passenger transport policy and strategy. Details of these events 
can be found on page 14.

To submit your views, please fill out the consultation survey and make sure it reaches us by midnight 
on 13 June 2018 at the latest. The survey is available online at www.leicestershire.gov.uk/passenger-
transport-consultation

Paper copies of the survey are available on request by calling 0116 305 0002.

What happens next ?
Following the consultation, we will consider all of the responses received and a report will be taken to the 
council’s cabinet in Autumn 2018.

Current contracts for subsidised bus services have all been extended until June 2019. 

If the passenger transport policy and strategy are agreed, the council would start a rolling programme of 
reviewing all current subsidised bus services against the agreed policy and strategy. Where a bus service 
is not considered to provide good value, the council would consult locally on potential alternative services. 
Changes to passenger transport provision as a result of these reviews would not come into effect until the 
summer of 2019 at the earliest.

Rolling process on service and local area basis

Countywide process

Autumn 2018

Environment & Transport 
overview and scrutiny 
commitee and Cabinet

Autumn - Winter  
2018 onwards

Reviews of individual 
services, once policy and 

strategy approved

March - June 2018

Policy and strategy 
consultation

2019 onwards

Local consultation on 
potential alternative 

services (where required) 
Implementation phase

June - October 2018

Analysis of  
consultation feedback

76



Leicestershire’s future  13

1 Catchment area defined as within 800m of a bus stop.

Indicator Points scale

Net subsidy cost per passenger-km 0 - 20 points

Number of people for whom the service has a high value 0 - 10 points

Journey purposes served 0 - 5 points

Overall service score Case for support rating

25 or more Strong

20 - 24 Marginal

Less than 20 Weak

Additional information

Proposed criteria for financial support to bus services
To inform the council’s decision about financial support, bus services will be put through an objective 
assessment of the benefits and costs of supporting that service. We propose to use the following key 
indicators:

• Subsidy cost per passenger-km. This is the main indicator of value for money and compares the 
cost of supporting the service with the actual or forecast demand. 

• Number of Leicestershire residents within the bus service’s catchment area1 who: 

- don’t have access to another direct service to a local centre by other means (e.g. another bus or 
train service stopping within 800m of their home), and

- who aren’t within reasonable walking distance (800m) of a local centre. 

This indicator relates to the number of people for whom a particular service has a high value. 

• Journey purposes served. Bus services that accommodate a number of high priority journey 
purposes are considered more ‘valuable’ than those that focus primarily on lower priority  
journey purposes.

We have developed a scoring mechanism, which is weighted to reflect the relative importance of these 
indicators and enable us to differentiate between the merits of different service options. 

Once a service has been through the scoring mechanism, the resultant overall score (out of 35) will be 
viewed in the context of a case-for-support rating. This is shown in the table below.

77



14  Leicestershire’s future

Consultation information events

There is no need to register in advance for these consultation events. If you have any special 
requirements, such as a hearing loop, or you require support to enable you to attend an event,  
please contact us on 0116 305 0002 or email ptps@leics.gov.uk

Date Venue Time

Thursday 3rd May 2018

Measham Leisure Centre 
High Street 
Measham 
Leicestershire 
DE12 7HR

7pm - 8.30pm  
(registration from 6.30pm)

Thursday 10th May 2018

Lutterworth Town Hall 
Market Square 
Lutterworth 
LE17 4AT

7pm - 8.30pm  
(registration from 6.30pm)

Thursday 17th May 2018

Green Towers 
Richmond Road 
Hinckley 
Leicestershire 
LE10 0DZ

7pm - 8.30pm  
(registration from 6.30pm)

Monday 21st May 2018

Melton Civic Suite 
Parkside 
Station Approach 
Burton Street 
Melton Mowbray 
Leicestershire 
LE13 1GH

7pm - 8.30pm  
(registration from 6.30pm)

Wednesday 23rd May 2018

Rosebery St Peter’s  
Community Centre 
Storer Road 
Loughborough 
Leicestershire 
LE11 5EQ

7pm - 8.30pm  
(registration from 6.30pm)

78



Leicestershire’s future  15

Notes

79



You can view the latest information  
in a number of ways

Visit us online at www.leicestershire.gov.uk/passenger-transport-
consultation Our web pages will be kept up-to-date with the latest 
information and developments. You’ll also be able to access the 
survey here.

Send an email to ptps@leics.gov.uk to register  
for the latest news and updates.

Follow us @leicscountyhall for general updates from the council, 
including the developments on the budget.

Alternatively, you can telephone 0116 305 0002 to ask for 
information in printed or alternative formats.

R
0

8
8

8
80



Have your say on proposed changes to support for 
passenger transport services in Leicestershire

Consultation on the Draft Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy

The county council has to consider if and how it can meet a need for public transport where this 
need cannot be met in other ways. 

The proposed Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy sets out how the county council would go 
about meeting its statutory duties and deliver value for money passenger transport services for 
Leicestershire. 

Further information on the proposals can be found in the supporting documentation provided. 
Please read this before completing the questionnaire. 

Thank you for your assistance. Your views are important to us.

Please note: Your responses to the main part of the survey including your comments) may be 
released to the general public in full under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. Any responses to 
the questions in the 'About you' section of the questionnaire will be held securely and will not be 
subject to release under Freedom of Information legislation, nor passed on to any third party.

Q1 In what role are you responding to this consultation? Please tick one option only

Resident of Leicestershire Go to Q4

Visitor to Leicestershire Go to Q4

Member of Leicestershire County Council staff Continue

Commercial bus operator/ employee Continue

Alternative passenger transport service operator/ employee or volunteer (e.g. Demand 
Responsive Transport, Community Transport Schemes, other local transport solution) Continue

County, district or parish/town councillor Continue

Representative of another public sector organisation Continue

Representative of another voluntary sector organisation, charity or community group Continue

Representative of another business or private sector organisation Continue

Other (please specify below) Continue

Other (please specify)

Leicestershire’s future 
The plan for change

Have your say
Proposed changes to how we support  
passenger transport services in Leicestershire
Consultation on the draft passenger transport policy and strategy

81

HHUDSON_1
Text Box
APPENDIX G2



Q2 If you indicated that you represent an organisation, business or community group, please 
provide your details.

Name:

Role:

Organisation name:

This information may be subject to disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000

Organisation postcode:

Q3 Are you providing your organisation's official response to the consultation?

Yes No

Your views and experience of using Leicestershire passenger 
transport services

Please could you tell us about how you travel and whether you currently use Leicestershire's 
passenger transport services.

Q4 Approximately, how often, if at all, do you use each of the following to get about within 
Leicestershire?

Walking (journeys of 100 
meters or more)

Daily

Several 
times a 
week

About 
once a 
week

About 
once a 

fortnight

About 
once a 
month

Every 
few 

months

About 
once a 
year

Less 
often Never

Bus

Alternative passenger transport 
services such as Demand 
Responsive Transport (DRT', 
Community Transport Schemes 
(e.g. Dial a Ride) or other local 
transport solutions (i.e. car 
sharing or good neighbour 
schemes)

Car (or van)

Motorcycle or moped

Cycle 

Wheelchair or mobility scooter

Other

82



Q5 How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the current passenger transport services provided in 
Leicestershire?

Buses

Very 
satisfied

Fairly 
satisfied

Neither 
satisfied nor 
dissatisfied

Fairly 
dissatisfied

Very 
dissatisfied Don't know

Alternative passenger transport 
services such as Demand 
Responsive Transport (DRT', 
Community Transport Schemes 
(e.g. Dial a Ride) or other local 
transport solutions (i.e. car 
sharing or good neighbour 
schemes)

Q6 If you didn't have access to any passenger transport services (buses or Demand Responsive 
Transport/ Community Transport) in Leicestershire, how easy would it be for you to make 
journeys to...? 

Work/ training

Very easy Fairly easy Not very easy Not at all easy 

Not 
applicable/ 
Don't know

School/ college/ education

Food shopping

GP appointments, pharmacy services

Hospital appointments

Leisure

See friends and family

Other (please specify below)

Please specify 'other'

83



Q7 Which, if any, subsidised bus services in Leicestershire have you used in the last year? 
Please tick all that apply

NONE - GO TO QUESTION 9

22B Leicester - Birstall: First and last journeys Mon-Fri (Centrebus)   

22B Leicester - Birstall: Saturday (Centrebus)   

X6 Bottesford - Grantham: Muston diversion (Centrebus)   

X6 Bottesford - Grantham: Morning school journey (Centrebus)   

X6 Bottesford - Grantham: Afternoon school journey (Centrebus)   

40 Circleline: Mon-Fri from 14:45, Saturdays (Centrebus)   

120 Leicester - Coalville (Roberts Travel Group)   

155 Coalville - Castle Donington (Roberts Travel Group)   

44 Foxton - Harborough Fleckney (Centrebus)   

33 Market Harborough Town Services (Centrebus)   

3 & 66 Hinckley Town + Dadlington Diversion (Arriva Hinckleybus)   

8 Lutterworth - Hinckley (Arriva Hinckleybus)   

7 & 66 Hinckley Town: Off-peak journeys (Arriva Hinckleybus)   

X84 Leicester - Rugby: Saturday (Arriva Hinckleybus)   

X55 Hinckley - Leicester (Fosse Park): First and last journeys (Arriva Hinckleybus)   

3 & 13 Loughborough Town Services (Paul S. Winson)   

154 Leicester - Quorn: 18:25 departure, Mon-Fri (Centrebus)   

154 Leicester - Loughborough: Saturday (Centrebus)   

27 Loughborough - Thurmaston (Roberts Travel Group)   

129 Ashby - Loughborough (Paul S. Winson)   

8 Loughborough - Melton (Centrebus)   

661 Lutterworth - Rural Villages (Murphy's Taxis)   

7 Measham - Atherstone (Roberts Travel Group)   

113 Melton - Oakham (Centrebus)   

23 & 25 Melton - Stathern/Nether Broughton (Centrebus)   

128 Leicester - Melton north of A607 (Centrebus)   

55 & 56 Melton - Grantham (Centrebus)   

100 Leicester - Melton south of A607 (Centrebus)   

14 & 15 Melton Town Services: First journey (service 15) and last journey (service 14) Mon-Fri, all 
Saturday (Centrebus)   

24 Melton - Bottesford/Bingham (Centrebus)   

747 Leicester - Uppingham: Off-peak Mon-Fri, Saturday (Centrebus) 

84



Q8 If you have used one or more of the subsidised services listed in Q7, approximately how often 
do you use a subsidised bus service in Leicestershire for the following types of journey?

Work/ training

Daily

Several 
times a 
week

About 
once a 
week

About 
once a 

fortnight

About 
once a 
month

Every 
few 

months

About 
once a 
year

Less 
often Never

School/ college/ education

Food shopping

GP appointments, pharmacy 
services

Hospital appointments

Leisure

See friends and family

Other (please specify below)

Please specify 'other'

Our proposals

Our proposed approach to meeting people's essential transport needs in the most cost effective 
way, focuses on supporting the commercial bus network and community transport operators, 
encouraging local transport solutions, and providing a subsidised bus service only where that 
provides clear value for money. 

In areas of lower usage, where services are not commercially viable, bus services can be a 
relatively expensive and inflexible way to transport people. Although some subsidised bus services 
are well used and provide reasonable value for money, usage of other services has declined or 
continues to be low. These services do not present best use of public money and we would 
therefore look to support alternatives such as local transport solutions or Demand Responsive 
Transport services instead.

Please refer to the supporting information provided for further details of our proposals.

Q9 To what extent do you agree or disagree that our aim should be to focus on meeting people’s 
essential transport needs in the most cost-effective way?

Strongly agree Tend to agree Neither agree 
nor disagree Tend to disagree Strongly 

disagree Don't know

85



Why do you say this?

Q10 To what extent do you agree or disagree with our view that...?

Subsidising under-utilised bus routes does 
not represent the best use of council 
resources

Strongly 
agree

Tend to 
agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree

Tend to 
disagree

Strongly 
disagree Don't know

Buses are not always the best passenger 
transport solution for service users

Q11 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following aspects of our proposals?

Supporting operators to provide services 
commercially (so that they don't require 
council subsidy)

Strongly 
agree

Tend to 
agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree

Tend to 
disagree

Strongly 
disagree Don't know

Core operating times we propose 
supporting (Monday to Friday 07:00 to 
19:00 and Saturday 08:00 to 18:00)

The groups we propose prioritising 
services for (elderly, disabled or isolated 
people)

The types of journey we propose giving 
priority to (i.e. to food shopping, primary 
healthcare, and employment and training 
opportunities at a local centre)

Providing DRT as an alternative solution 
where subsidised bus routes don't 
represent value for money

Supporting Community Transport 
Schemes 

Encouraging and supporting communities 
to develop local transport solutions

86



If there are any elements you disagree with please could you explain why?

Q12 To what extent do you agree or disagree with our proposed method for deciding the financial 
case for subsiding a bus service?

Strongly agree Tend to agree Neither agree 
nor disagree Tend to disagree Strongly 

disagree Don't know

Why do you say this?

Q13 To what extent do you agree or disagree that DRT services, Community-Transport Schemes 
and local transport solutions could provide an alternative solution to subsidised bus routes 
that are low value for money?

Strongly agree Tend to agree Neither agree 
nor disagree Tend to disagree Strongly 

disagree Don't know

Why do you say this?

87



Q14 How could we best support communities to develop local transport solutions? What could 
these solutions look like? 

Q15 Are you aware of any local transport solutions already in your area that we could help 
support?

Q16 What impact, if any, would the implementation of the proposed policy and strategy have on 
your ability to access essential services?

Make it much harder

Make it a little harder

No difference

Make it a little easier

Make it much easier

Don't know

Why do you say this?

88



Please answer Q17 if you are currently using one or more subsidised bus services in 
Leicestershire (as indicated in Q7). If not, please go to Q18.

Q17 If you are currently using one or more subsidised bus services in Leicestershire, what impact, 
if any, would replacing these with a DRT service have on your ability to access essential 
services?

Make it much harder

Make it a little harder

No difference

Make it a little easier

Make it much easier

Don't know

Why do you say this?

Q18 Is there anything else we could do to provide value for money passenger transport services?

Q19 Overall, to what extent do you agree or disagree that our proposals would provide an efficient 
passenger transport service that meets user needs for priority journeys?

Strongly agree Tend to agree Neither agree 
nor disagree Tend to disagree Strongly 

disagree Don't know

89



Why do you say this?

Q20 Do you have any other comments, including on any other elements of the proposed policy 
and strategy?

Please continue if you indicated in Q1 that you are responding to this consultation as a resident or 
visitor to Leicestershire. Otherwise, please skip to the instructions at the end of the questionnaire. 

About you

Leicestershire County Council is committed to ensuring that its services, policies and practices are 
free from discrimination and prejudice and that they meet the needs of all sections of the 
community. 

We would therefore be grateful if you would answer the questions below. You are under no 
obligation to provide the information requested, but it would help us greatly if you did. 

Q21 What is your gender identity?

Male Female Other (e.g. pangender, non-
binary etc.)

Q22 Is your gender identity the same as the gender you were assigned at birth?   

Yes No

Q23 What was your age on your last birthday? (Please enter your age in numbers not words)

90



Q24 What is your full postcode? This will allow us to see how far people live from different 
transport services. It will not identify your house.

Q25 Are you a parent or carer of a young person aged 17 or under?

Yes No

Q26 If yes, what are the ages of the children in your care? Please tick all applicable  

0-4 5-10 11-15 16-17

Q27 Are you a carer of a person aged 18 or over?

Yes No

Q28 Do you have a long-standing illness, disability or infirmity?

Yes No

Q29 What is your ethnic group? Please tick one box only.

White

Mixed

Asian or Asian British

Black or Black British

Other ethnic group

Q30 What is your religion?

No religion

Christian (all 
denominations)

Buddhist

Hindu

Jewish

Muslim

Sikh

Any other religion

Q31 In total, how many cars or vans are owned or available for use by members of your 
household? 

None

One

Two

Three

Four or more

Don't know

Q32 What is your highest level of qualification you have obtained? 

No qualifications

GCSEs/O-levels or equivalent

A-levels or equivalent

Diploma in higher education

Lower degree or PGCE (e.g. BA or BSc etc)

Higher degree (e.g. MSc, Phd etc)

Professional, vocational or work-related 
qualifications

Other

91



Q33 Which of these activities best describes what you are doing at present? 

Employee in full-time job (30 hours plus per week)

Employee in part-time job (less than 30 hours per week)

Self employed full or part-time

On a government supported training programme - e.g. Modern Apprenticeship / Training for Work

Full-time education at school, college or university.

Unemployed and available for work

Permanently sick / disabled

Wholly retired from work

Looking after the home

Doing something else

Q34 Are you an employee of Leicestershire County Council?

Yes No

Q35 Many people face discrimination because of their sexual orientation and for this reason we 
have decided to ask this monitoring question. You do not have to answer it, but we would be 
grateful if you could tick the box next to the category which describes your sexual orientation.

Bi-sexual

Gay

Heterosexual / straight

Lesbian

Other

Thank you for your assistance. Your views are important to us.

The consultation closes on 13 June and we will report the results back to Cabinet in autumn 2018.

Please return your completed survey to: Passenger Transport Consultation, Room 300B, 
Leicestershire County Council, Have Your Say, FREEPOST NAT18685, 
Leicester, LE3 8XR. No stamp required.

Data Protection: Personal data supplied on this form will be held on computer and will be used in accordance with 
the Data Protection Act 1998. The information you provide will be used for statistical analysis, management, 
planning and the provision of services by the county council and its partners. Leicestershire County Council will not 
share any information collected from the ‘About you’ section of this survey with its partners. The information will be 
held in accordance with the council’s records management and retention policy. Information which is not in the 
‘About you’ section of the questionnaire may be subject to disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

92



Have your say 
Proposed changes to how we 
support passenger transport 
services in Leicestershire

Leicestershire’s future 
The plan for change

Give us your views
Consultation on the draft passenger transport policy and strategy

Online: www.leicestershire.gov.uk/passenger-transport-consultation

For general enquiries or comments about this consultation  
phone 0116 305 0002 or email ptps@leics.gov.uk

Public consultation: Please submit your views by midnight  
on Wednesday 13 June 2018

93

HHUDSON_2
Text Box
APPENDIX G3



This page is intentionally left blank



PROPOSED PASSENGER TRANSPORT POLICY AND STRATEGY 

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 

 

GENERAL QUESTIONS  

 

1) What is the statutory duty on Leicestershire County Council to provide Public 

Transport? 

 

The operation of local bus services in Leicestershire is the responsibility of 

commercial/private bus operators. This has been the case since local bus service 

operation was opened to the commercial market by the Transport Act 1985 making bus 

service operation a profit-driven business.  

 

Whilst the provision of public transport is not a public service, Section 63(1)(a) of the 

Transport Act 1985 explains that local authorities must “secure the provision of such 

public passenger transport services as the council considers it appropriate to secure to 

meet any public transport requirements within the county which would not in their view 

be met apart from any action taken by them for that purpose”. 

 

However, when deciding what is “appropriate” the council is within its rights under the 

act to take into account the funds that are available. This means that there isn’t a specific 

requirement that the council must subsidise bus services.  

 

2) The title of the consultation document says ‘Have your say on proposed changes to 

how we support passenger transport services in Leicestershire’; what is meant by 

the term ‘support’?     

 

This is referencing the financial ‘support’ that the County Council provides towards 

passenger transport services. This maybe in the form of full or partial subsidy of bus 

services, Demand Responsive Transport solutions and Community Transport etc. 

Where reference is made to supporting commercial operators within the consultation 

document, this means working with them to ensure things like bus stop infrastructure 

and service information are provided and maintained and helping to ensure that buses 

are not held up by congestion etc. This support does not require council subsidy.  

 

3) Is this new Public Transport Policy and Strategy just about saving money? 

 

No, the proposed PTPS sets out how the County Council would go about meeting its 

statutory duties and deliver value for money passenger transport services for 

Leicestershire. The PTPS will ensure fit for purpose passenger transport solutions are 

provided that best meet essential need and fulfil statutory requirements. It aims to make 

the best use of the council’s limited funding resource for socially necessary passenger 

transport provision. 

 

 

95

HHUDSON_3
Text Box
APPENDIX G4



4) How much does a bus service cost to run? 

 

The typical running cost of 1 bus is circa £125,000 to £150,000. This includes the cost of 

the bus, driver’s salary, maintenance, mileage, insurance etc. This cost is before any fare 

revenue is taken into account. It should be noted that the longer the routeing for the 

service and/or higher its frequency then more than 1 bus would be required to run the 

service. 

 

5) When will the PTPS be implemented and any changes as a result of it come into 

force? 

 

The consultation exercise on the new passenger transport policy and strategy (PTPS) will 

take place between 21st March and 13th June 2018.  

If the passenger transport policy and strategy are agreed, the council would start a 

rolling programme of reviewing all current subsidised bus services against the agreed 

policy and strategy. Where a bus service is not considered to provide good value, the 

council would consult locally on potential alternative services. Subject to the agreement 

of the County Council’s Cabinet to adopt and to implement a new PTPS, changes to 

passenger transport provision as a result of these reviews would not come into effect 

until the summer of 2019 at the earliest.’ 

6) If a local bus service is withdrawn from an area does this mean that there will no 

passenger transport provision for that area at all? 

 

No, not necessarily; where a service is withdrawn or where some transport needs cannot 

be met by the commercial market or by community transport services, the council has to 

consider whether it should intervene with some form of alternative provision in line with 

its statutory duty. 

 

The council would therefore assess the case for need and support as detailed in the 

policy and strategy and decide what is appropriate to provide. In deciding what is 

appropriate the council would aim to ensure good use of the limited resources 

available by providing fit-for-purpose solutions that best meet the essential 

needs of Leicestershire’s residents. The alternative, if considered necessary, therefore 

might not be the provision of a bus. 

 

7) Why are some services contracted together and others contracted individually? 

 

In the case where 2 services are listed together this reflects that the services were 

tendered as a package of work and operationally interworked to get the most 

efficient use of the resources and to ensure the very best contract price was 

achieved for the council. Whilst together the services offer the best value 

possible, splitting the services and contracting them individually would create 

inefficiencies and subsequently an increase in price. Removing one of the services 

and continuing with the other would result in a considerable increase in the cost 

96



of the remaining service as it would still require a vehicle and driver for the whole 

day but would have more standing time in the likely case that the bus had no 

other work to be interworked with. 

In cases where the same service appears as 2 or more separate contracts, this 

reflects that different parts of the service have been contracted separately with 

the operator. For example, the 154 Saturday service supports the whole operation 

for this service on a Saturday whereas the Monday to Friday service reflects one 

late journey which the operator would not operate commercially and the Council 

decided to support according to the Council’s current policy. These type of 

arrangements are often what is called a ‘de minimis’ agreement whereby the bus 

company operates the majority of the contract on a commercial basis and the 

Council buy in additional journeys where it deems them necessary. 

 

8) What are neighbouring authorities doing with respect to public transport 

provision? 

 

Many local authorities across the country either have in place or are developing a 

scheme for prioritising how they should use their limited resources for subsidising bus 

services that are not commercially viable. As examples: 

 

a) In Nottinghamshire, the County Council uses a multi-criteria scoring scheme that has 

some similarities with the proposed Leicestershire scoring scheme.  This looks at six 

indicators rather than our proposed three – these are: 

 

i) subsidy per passenger trip 

ii) number of passengers per journey 

iii) journey purpose 

iv) car ownership levels in the communities which the service serves 

v) availability of alternative public transport provision in the communities which the 

service serves, and 

vi) index of multiple deprivation levels in the communities which the service serves. 

 

b) In February of this year (2018) Northamptonshire County Council agreed its budget 

proposals, which include removing all bus subsidies, including CountyConnect and 

CallConnect, from the end of the school term in July 2018.  

 

9) What is a Travel Plan? 

 

A Travel Plan is a plan of action to encourage people to use sustainable travel means 

such as walking, cycling and bus use rather than private cars.  These have significant 

environmental and health benefits.  A Travel Plan is often required by a planning 

authority for a new development, to try to ensure that as many people as possible who 

live or work in that development use sustainable travel.  It may include a range of 

measures that encourage or help people to make sustainable travel choices. 

 

97



QUESTIONS ABOUT THE SCORING MECHANISMS FOR ASSESSING THE CASE FOR 

SUPPORTING LOCAL BUS SERVICES 

 

10) Why have food shopping, primary healthcare, and employment & training been 

identified as the highest priority journey purposes? 

 

Food shopping and primary healthcare journeys are seen as supporting the basic 

essentials for people to live and are in line with Leicestershire County Council’s 

‘Wellbeing and Opportunity’ target outcome set out in the council’s new Strategic Plan. 

Access to employment and training is seen as a high priority as it contributes towards the 

council’s target outcome of a ‘Strong Economy’. 

 

11) Why have you used ‘cost per passenger kilometre’ as an indicator? 

  

Subsidy cost per person-trip is often used by local authorities as a key measure of value 

for money when considering bus subsidies.  While useful, this ignores the fact that some 

trips are longer than others.  Our chosen indicator is a variant which acknowledges that, 

for example, subsidising a route by £2 per trip where an average trip is 10km long 

provides better value than subsidising a route by £2 per trip where an average trip is only 

1km long. 

 

12) Why have you used ‘number of Leicestershire residents within the bus service’s 

catchment area’ as an indicator? 

 

This indicator reflects the value to a local community of having the option to use bus 

travel when needed.  It looks at the number of people who would have no access to any 

regular bus service linking them to a local centre and who would be too far from a local 

centre to walk.  Within this indicator, greater weighting is also given to serving 

communities that suffer from employment deprivation, in line with the council’s 

‘Wellbeing and Opportunity’ and ‘Strong Economy’ target outcomes within its overall 

Strategic Plan. 

 

13) Why have you used 800m as the distance for assessing whether people have access 

to another bus service or directly to a local centre? 

 

800m has been adopted as the maximum distance people could reasonably be expected 

to walk to catch a bus or to walk straight to a local centre.  This is in line with industry 

guidance.  For example, the Chartered Institution of Highways & Transportation 

Guidelines for Providing for Journeys on Foot (2000) suggests that outside town centres, 

800m is an ‘acceptable’ walking distance and 1200m is a ‘preferred maximum’.  People 

with mobility difficulties, for whom these distances may not be possible, may be catered 

for by door-to-door community transport services, which Leicestershire County Council 

will continue to support.  

 

 

98



14) Why have you used ‘journey purposes served’ as an indicator? 

 

This indicator helps ensure that services that can support the journey purposes that have 

been identified as high priority (food shopping, primary healthcare, and employment and 

training) score more highly, as do services that support multiple journey purposes. 

 

15) How is each scoring indicator calculated – what data is used? 

 

a) Net subsidy cost per passenger-km   

 

The calculation of the net subsidy cost per passenger-km involves comparing the 

overall net cost of supporting a bus service with the actual or forecast usage. This is 

done in three stages: 

 

i. The starting point for the net subsidy cost is the cost of the contract the County 

Council has with the bus operator to operate the service.  Depending on the form 

of contract, this is adjusted by: 

 

 Deduction of the amount of fare revenue (if any) coming back to the Council 

from the operator; 

 Addition of the cost to the Council of any additional money reimbursed to the 

operator for carrying concessionary passholders for free; and 

 Deduction of the cost of any school service that would need to be put in place 

to carry statutorily-entitled pupils if the bus service wasn’t operating. 

 

ii. Passenger-km travelled is calculated from the number of trips carried on the 

service multiplied by the average passenger trip length on the service.  Numbers 

of trips are logged on the bus through the ticket machine every time someone 

boards, and are reported back to the Council by bus operators on a regular basis.  

Average trip length is determined using either data from on-bus surveys or from 

a default assumption that the average trip length is half the service route length 

(this is an assumption that is commonly used in estimating average trip length for 

reimbursing operators for carrying concessionary passengers, based on guidance 

from the Government Department for Transport). 

 

iii. Net subsidy cost per passenger-km is then the result of a) divided by the result 

from b). 

 

b) Number of Leicestershire residents within the bus service’s catchment area  who 

don’t have access to another direct service to a local centre by other means (e.g. 

a commercial bus or train service stopping within 800m of their home), and 

who aren’t within reasonable walking distance (800m) of a local centre  

 

This indicator is determined using a computerised geographic information system 

(GIS) analysis on a map base from Ordnance Survey.   

First, a radius of 800m is drawn on a map layer around each bus stop location used 

by the service under consideration.  This is overlaid by a 2nd map layer that shows 

99



the geographic location of where people live in Leicestershire – this information is 

drawn from the national census that takes place every 10 years.  This enables the 

number of people living within the bus service’s catchment area to be calculated. This 

number is then adjusted by effectively overlaying two more layers: 

 

i. A 3rd map layer is overlaid that shows areas of employment deprivation as 

defined by the Government’s ‘indices of deprivation’ data .  Any people within the 

catchment area who also live in one of the 30% most employment-deprived areas 

of England an area of employment deprivation  are counted double for this 

indicator. This reflects the emphasis on economic development and wellbeing in 

the County Council’s new Strategic Plan.  

  

ii. A 4th map layer is then created that shows the 800m radius catchment areas of 

any commercial bus service that operates near the subsidised service in question 

and an 800m radius area from any local centres that the subsidised bus service in 

question serves.  The population within any overlap between these and the 

catchment area for the bus service in question is deducted from the total as they 

are seen to have alternative travel options for reaching a local centre using a 

commercial bus service or walking. 

 

c) Journey purposes served.  

 

The information for journey purposes served is drawn preferably from short surveys 

of users of the subsidised bus service in question.  If that is not possible for some 

reason, discussions will take place with the bus operator whose drivers often get to 

know what passengers use the bus for at different times of day. 

 

QUESTIONS ABOUT ALTERNATIVE PASSENGER TRANSPORT OPTIONS 

 

16) How do Demand Responsive Transport services work? 

 

With such services, small vehicles such as taxis or minibuses are contracted to provide a 

link for people who would otherwise be isolated to the nearest local centre when needed.  

These will operate on certain days and at certain times at fares that are much cheaper 

than commercial taxis, but will only run if people book them.  Bookings can be made 

easily in advance by telephone. 

 

Leicestershire already operates a number of DRT services that link villages without bus 

services to their nearest local centre, and has done for a number of years. Details of these 

services along with further information about DRT’s can be found on our Choose How 

You Move web site via this link http://www.choosehowyoumove.co.uk/everyday/public-

transport/  

 

17) What is Community Transport? 

 

Community transport (CT) services currently provide a valuable service for people from 

vulnerable groups in particular (for example, disabled or older people with impaired 

100

http://www.choosehowyoumove.co.uk/everyday/public-transport/
http://www.choosehowyoumove.co.uk/everyday/public-transport/


mobility, and people who live in isolation), helping them to access key services and 

activities that they can’t reach using the commercial bus network.  These services are 

provided by community organisations, with much of the work involved being undertaken 

on a voluntary basis.  

  

More information about Community Transport and the services available across the 

County can be found on our Choose How You Move web site via this link 

http://www.choosehowyoumove.co.uk/everyday/community-transport/  

 

QUESTIONS ABOUT LOCAL COMMUNITY PASSENGER TRANSPORT SOLUTIONS 

 

18) What are Good Neighbour Schemes? 

 

Good neighbour schemes are set up and run by communities to support people in need 

within their local area.  Good neighbour schemes offer a range of services to older 

people to help keep them safe and continue living independently.  The services offered 

by schemes may include befriending, home visiting, caring for pets during holiday, 

shopping, household tasks etc.  Some schemes have their own transport elements with 

volunteers providing lifts to those who need them for a variety of different purposes, 

such as shopping and attending medical appointments.  Many schemes are run at a 

parish level and are managed by a small group of volunteer coordinators.  

Good neighbour schemes have been set up in several locations with support provided by 

Rural Community Council (Leicestershire and Rutland).  Examples of these Good 

Neighbour Schemes which contain a transport element include: 

 Bottesford; 

 Croft; 

 Sharnford; and 

 Whissendine. 

 

19) What are car share schemes? 

 

There are a number of service providers offering car sharing services which connect 

people wishing to travel with people who are already travelling and have a spare seat in 

their car.  These car-sharing schemes include Liftshare, BlaBlaCar and GoCarShare.  Some 

providers offer systems to set up and operate car-sharing schemes within a defined area 

(e.g. Liftshare).  

These schemes involve people registering on a computer database to become members 

of the scheme, stating their journey and whether they are offering a lift or requesting 

one.  The database allows users to search for other users making the same or similar 

journeys.  When a suitable match is identified the running costs are divided between 

those travelling which acts as an incentive for sharing the journey. 

The majority of registered car-sharers tend to live in urban areas but there is the 

potential for those living in more rural areas to benefit from car-sharing.  Leicestershire 

already has a car-sharing scheme, set up under its Choose How You Move programme, 

101

http://www.choosehowyoumove.co.uk/everyday/community-transport/
http://www.bottesfordgns.org.uk/
http://www.croftgoodneighbours.com/
http://www.sharnfordparishcouncil.co.uk/good-neighbour-scheme
http://www.whissendinegns.org.uk/
https://liftshare.com/uk
https://www.blablacar.co.uk/
http://gocarshare.com/
https://liftshare.com/uk


called Choose How You Move Carshare.  The scheme covers the county area and 

Leicester. 

 

20) What are car clubs? 

 

A car club is a pool of cars for the use of local people.  Members can hire the club’s 

vehicles, as and when they require.  Car clubs give their members the flexibility of using a 

car for private or business journeys, without the costs of owning or maintaining one. 

Each car club either owns or leases cars that are then made available to their local 

community for short-term use.  The club covers the cost of the insurance, tax and 

servicing of the vehicles with people usually paying an annual fee to be a member and a 

charge per hour to hire a vehicle when they require one.  There is also usually a mileage 

charge, but fuel is included in the cost of the hire.  Bookings can be made via a website 

or over the telephone.  

Car Clubs usually operate in urban areas; however, they have also been used to improve 

accessibility in rural areas, particularly in Scotland, operating in small villages such as 

Creetown in Dumfriesshire, as well as on the island of Bute.  The clubs are either run by 

local volunteers or supported by a local development body.  Car clubs which have been 

set up in rural communities have required significant resource to promote their services, 

in addition to varying amounts of ongoing subsidy. 

Carplus is a not-for-profit, environmental transport Non-Governmental Organisation 

(NGO) which promotes car clubs and 2+ car sharing.  They provide guidance on setting 

up community and informal car clubs  

 

 

 

102

https://liftshare.com/uk/community/leicestershare
http://www.moorcar.co.uk/clubs/wheels4creetown
http://www.fynefutures.org.uk/carbute/
https://www.carplusbikeplus.org.uk/running-community-and-informal-car-clubs/


 

 
 
 
 

ENVIRONMENT AND TRANSPORT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE – 31 MAY 2018 

 
PERFORMANCE REPORT QUARTER 4 2017/18  

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR OF 

ENVIRONMENT AND TRANSPORT  
 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Environment and Transport Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee with details of the performance of the Environment and Transport 
Department at the end of quarter 4 of 2017/18.  It should be noted that some of the 
figures within the quarter 4 report relate to earlier quarters of 2017/18 or end of year 
totals; where this is the case, it is stated. 

 
2. The Committee is asked to note the performance of the Environment and Transport 

Department at the end of quarter 4 of 2017/18. 
 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 
3. Performance of the Environment and Transport Department is reported on a quarterly 

basis to the Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee.    A new 
Strategic Plan covering the period 2018-22 was adopted by the Council in December 
2017 to guide commissioning, delivery and associated performance reporting.  The 
overall environment and transport performance framework is currently based on 
priorities in the Departmental Interim Commissioning Strategy and will be updated to 
reflect the new strategic outcomes from quarter 1 2018/19.  

 
Background 
 
4. This report includes Appendix A, containing two performance dashboards and 

commentary on the Environment and Transport Department’s key priorities.  The first 
dashboard summarises Environment and Waste performance and the second 
summarises Highway and Transport performance.  The indicators included are a 
mixture of national and locally-developed performance indicators.  Where it is 
available, the dashboards indicate which quartile Leicestershire’s performance falls 
into.  The first quartile is defined as performance that falls within the top 25% of two-
tier county areas.  The fourth quartile is defined as performance that falls within the 
bottom 25% of two-tier county areas. 

 
  

103 Agenda Item 11



 

Performance Update – Quarter 4 
 
5. The performance dashboards show that of the 19 indicators, 12 have been updated 

this quarter.  Improvement or deterioration in performance is indicated by the 
direction of the arrows on the dashboard: five show improvements, five have 
declined, two have remained the same as the previous quarter and seven were not 
updated.  Where figures have not been updated, this is primarily due to the time 
taken to obtain data from third parties and to calculate the results.  However, some 
data is also collected more infrequently. 

 
6. Performance is rated using the traffic light method of Red, Amber, and Green and is 

explained in more detail in Appendix B.  Of the 19 indicators with targets and 
available data, 13 are on target (green), two have an amber rating and four are rated 
red.  The commentary in paragraphs 7–24 below explains the latest performance 
figures. 

 
Sustainable waste management 
 
7. All three waste management indicators were updated this quarter.  One indicator met 

its target, rated green.  Two indicators changed status this quarter to red (currently 
not meeting target). 

 
8. The percentage of municipal waste sent to landfill is now off track against its interim 

target of less than 30%.  This indicator has declined in performance this quarter from 
30.6%1 in quarter 3 to 32.3 in quarter 4, resulting in a change in its status from green 
to red.  This has increased as a result of the loss of alternative (non-landfill) disposal 
points, which is outside of the authority’s control.  The County Council is in the 
process of negotiating an increase in the amount of waste delivered to alternative 
disposal points, which would reduce the amount of waste sent to landfill in future 
years. Compared to other two-tier county council areas, Leicestershire is in the third 
quartile for this indicator. 

 
9. ‘The percentage of waste sent by the local authority across Leicestershire for reuse, 

recycling or composting’ has declined in performance to 47.4% this quarter from 
48.3% in quarter 3 (for the 12 months to Sept 2017) and remains slightly off track for 
the interim target (50%).  This has resulted in a change in its status from amber to 
red.  This indicator has decreased as a result of the loss of alternative (non-landfill) 
disposal points from which a proportion of recyclable materials had been recovered. 
There is greater uncertainty about future performance due to a number of influencing 
factors.  It is possible that performance could fall further as full year effects of the loss 
of the disposal points are felt.  Compared to other two-tier county council areas, 
Leicestershire is in the second quartile and very close to the average of these 
comparator authorities. 

 
10. ‘The total household waste per household’ saw a slight improvement in performance 

from 1,094 kilograms in quarter 3 to 1084 kilograms in quarter 4 (for the last 12 
months to September 2017).  This indicator continues to achieve its interim target of 
less than 1,104 kilograms, resulting in a green rating.  However, Leicestershire’s 
performance is in the fourth quartile (lowest) compared to other county councils. 

  

                                            
1
 This level of detail is included to reflect an accurate change in performance. 

104



 

Reducing the Council’s environmental impact 
 
11. Overall, two of the three indicators within this outcome had met their targets. 

However, the most recent data from quarter 3 showed that two of the recently 
updated indicators within this outcome had declined in performance.  These included 
‘tonnes of waste produced from LCC sites’ and ‘the percentage of waste recycled 
from LCC sites (non-operational). 
 

12. Tonnes of waste produced from LCC sites increased from 465 tonnes in quarter 3 to 
469 in quarter 4, resulting in a very slight decline in performance but remained well 
within its target of fewer than 791 tonnes.   
 

13. The ‘Percent of Waste recycled from LCC sites’ continued to decline in performance 
slightly to 54%, compared to 55% during the previous quarter.  It remained off track 
against its challenging interim target of 70%, resulting in a red rating.  Although the 
recycling rate at County Hall is very good (around 79%), other County Council 
buildings, particularly those with community use, are achieving recycling rates of less 
than 50%.  The waste tonnage generated in quarter 3 is less than one tonne.  The 
total waste and recycling rate of every LCC building is monitored quarterly.  Buildings 
with the lowest recycling rates are visited by staff in the Go Green team to review 
waste operations and to recommend changes that should improve recycling.  The 
external bins, provided by the waste contractor, are often accessible to the public and 
it is believed that non-LCC waste is put in some of the bins, which adds to the waste 
total.  A revised target is being considered as part of producing the new Environment 
Strategy, incorporating a more balanced figure that reflects recycling performance 
across the organisation.  This will be brought to the Environment and Transport 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28th June 2018. 

 
Reducing carbon emissions 
 
14. All of the performance indicators within this outcome have met their target and 

continue to improve.  
 
15. The indicators that have been updated this quarter include: ‘Carbon emissions from 

LCC buildings’, ‘CO2 emissions from LCC street lighting and traffic signs’ and ‘Total 
Business miles claimed’.  All of these have seen an improvement in performance 
since the previous quarter and remain on target (data for all three indicators are 
provided two quarters in arrears). 

 
Making roads safer 
 
16. Both performance indicators, ‘Total casualties on our roads’ and ‘Number of people 

killed or seriously injured on our roads’, were updated for quarter 4.  The former 
showed an improvement in performance (i.e. a decrease in casualties) and the latter 
decreased since the previous quarter. 

 
17. ‘Total casualties on our roads’ fell from 1,242 (quarter 3 2017/18) to 1,194 (latest 

data December 2017).  This is a 30% fall in total casualties since 2016.  This has met 
the interim target of fewer than 1,638 and the 2014 -18 Strategic Plan target of fewer 
than 1,494 casualties, resulting in a green rating.  Changes to police reporting 
procedures have affected these figures since quarter 1 and total reported collision 
numbers is uncharacteristically low in comparison with previous years.  Council 

105



 

officers and Leicestershire Police are working together to determine how a change in 
police policy has affected the accuracy of reported collisions.  Compared to other 
two-tier county council areas, Leicestershire is in the second quartile for this 
indicator. 

 
18. The number of people killed or seriously injured on our roads increased from 204 the 

previous quarter to 213 this quarter, a decrease in performance.  The latest data 
remains off track for the interim target of fewer than 178.  It therefore continues to be 
rated as amber.  Compared to other two-tier county council areas, Leicestershire is in 
the second quartile for this indicator. 

 
19. In terms of those killed, the total has declined from 36 in 2016 to 19 (the final year 

end 2017 figure), which is a 47% reduction.  Serious injuries have increased from 
189 in 2016 to 194 (the final year end 2017 figure).  This data is susceptible to 
fluctuation due to the comparatively small numbers involved.  Further analysis was 
provided at the Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 1 
March 2018 in the ‘Casualty Reduction 2017 – Annual Update’. 

 

A good level of highways maintenance 

 
20. Overall, the authority has met all its targets that demonstrate it is achieving a good 

level of highway maintenance.  Leicestershire is ranked 1st (the best) among 
comparative counties for both ‘% classified road network (A, B and C class roads) 
where structural maintenance should be considered’ and ‘Overall satisfaction with the 
condition of roads (NHT satisfaction survey). 
 

21. Only one indicator, ‘% of priority 1 and 2 routes gritted when required’, was updated 
this quarter.  The latest update shows that this remained at 100% for the 2017/18 
financial year to date.  

 
Strategic Transport Improvements and Reducing Congestion 
 
22. There were no updates to indicators within this outcome at quarter 4 as these 

indicators are only updated annually; therefore the last quarter performance position 
remains the same.  In summary, the ‘Total CO2 emissions in the local authority area 
originating from road transport’ remains amber rated because the latest data of 1,816 
kilo tonnes (2015), is not on track to meet the target of fewer than 1,796 kilo tonnes. 
Compared to other two-tier county council areas, Leicestershire is in the second 
quartile for this indicator. 

 
23. The ‘Average vehicle speeds during the morning peak (7am-10am) on locally 

managed ‘A’ roads in Leicestershire’ was 31.7mph, exceeding the Strategic Plan 
target of 29.5mph and resulting in a green rating.  Average vehicle speeds are used 
as a proxy measure for peak time congestion.  Compared to other two-tier county 
council areas, Leicestershire is in the second quartile for this indicator. 

  

106



 

Increase sustainable travel 

 
24. The latest data for ‘Local bus passenger journeys originating in the authority area’ 

remained at 13 million for the rolling 12 months to September 2017.  This is off track 
in meeting its Strategic Plan target of 13.6 million.  A recent update in its comparison 
benchmark position moved Leicestershire from the third quartile in 2015/16, to the  
fourth quartile in 2016/17, this combined with a long term downward trend for this 
indicator has resulted in a red rating.  Over the year, there have been a number of 
registration changes to the commercial network involving route changes or 
reductions, which are negatively impacting upon the passenger journey figures.  

 
Background papers 
 
1 March 2018 – Environment and Transport Overview Scrutiny Committee – ‘Road 
Casualty Reduction in Leicestershire’ 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=5327&Ver=4  
 
Leicestershire County Council Strategic Outcomes Framework and Plans 2018-22 and 
2014-18. 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-plans/the-strategic-plan  
 
Circulation under Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
None. 
  
Equalities and Human Rights Implications  
 
There are no specific equal opportunities implications to note as part of this performance 
report. 
 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A 1. Environment and Waste Performance Dashboard for Quarter 4, 2017/18. 

2. Transport Performance Dashboard for Quarter 4, 2017/18. 
 

Appendix B Performance RAG rating guidance.  
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Ann Carruthers 
Director, Environment and Transport Department 
Tel:  0116 305 7000 
Email:  Ann.Carruthers@leics.gov.uk 
 
Nicola Truslove 
Business Partner, Business Intelligence Service 
Tel:  0116 305 8302 
Email:  Nicola.Truslove@leics.gov.uk 
 

107

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=5327&Ver=4
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-plans/the-strategic-plan
mailto:Ann.Carruthers@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Nicola.Truslove@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1. Environment and Waste performance dashboard quarter 4 2017/18. 

Environment Strategic Plan Indicators Blanks = no updates received

Outcome Supporting Indicators
Strategic Plan 

Target

Interim 

Target

Current 

Direction of 

Travel

Trend / Chart
Target 

RAG

Comparison 

(Quartile)

% of municipal waste sent to landfill Decrease <30% 32.3%
Oct - Sep 

2017/18
LOW R 3rd 2016/17

% of household waste sent by local authorities across 

Leicestershire for reuse, recycling, composting etc. (former 

NI192) 

Increase 50% 47.4%
Oct - Sep 

2017/18
R 2nd 2016/17

Total household waste per household (kg) Decrease <1104 1084
Oct - Sep 

2017/18
LOW G 4th 2016/17

Tonnes of waste produced from LCC sites (non-operational) 

(Rolling 12 month total)
Decrease <791 469

Q3

2017/18
LOW G _

% waste recycled from LCC sites (non-operational) (Running 

rate over past 12 months)
70% 70% 53.6%

Q3

2017/18
R _

Office paper Purchased (,000's A4 sheets equivalent) 16,651 17,365  12,471 Q2     

2017/18

LOW G _

Total CO2 emissions from LCC operations (excluding 

schools) (tonnes)
23,455   27,009  21,181 2016/17 LOW 

(ANNUAL)
G _

Carbon emissions from LCC buildings (tonnes) 7,383 8,222    5,460 
Q2

2017/18
LOW G _

CO2 emissions from LCC street lighting & traffic signs 

(tonnes)
10,305 11,476    7,772 

Q2

2017/18
LOW G _

Energy consumption per m2 in LCC buildings (kwh/m2) Decrease 230.1    219.3 2016/17 LOW G _

Total Business miles claimed (‘000s of miles) 10,985 6,982    6,022 
Q2

2017/18
LOW G _

Environment & Waste Performance FY2017/18 Q4

Reduce carbon 

emissions

Sustainable waste 

management

Latest Data

Reduce the Council's 

environmental impact

KEY: Directional Arrows show direction of travel from the previous 

data reported (        = improving performance,        = declining 

performance,         = no change)

 

A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 A
   

109



2.  Transport performance dashboard quarter 4 2017/18. 

 Transport Strategic Plan Indicators Blanks = no updates received

Outcome Supporting Indicators

Strategic 

Plan 

Target

Current 

Direction 

of Travel

Trend / Chart
Target 

RAG

Comparison 

(Quartile)

Total casualties on our roads 

(Reduce by 40% compared to 2005-2009 average)

<1494

(-40%)
<1638 1194

Mth 12 

2017/18
LOW G 2nd (2016)

Number of people killed or seriously injured on our roads

(Reduce by 40% compared to 2005-2009 average)

<167

(-40%)
<178 213

Mth 12 

2017/18
LOW A 2nd (2016)

% of the classified road network (A, B and C class roads) 

where structural maintenance should be considered 

(SCANNER)

5-6% 6% 2% 2017/18 LOW G 1st (2016/17)

Overall satisfaction with the condition of roads (NHT satisfaction 

survey)

Top 

Quartile
38% 39.5% 2017 G 1st (2017)

% Priority 1 & 2 routes gritted when required 100% 100% 100%
Q4 

2017/18
G _

Total CO2 emissions in the local authority area originating from 

road transport (BEIS) (kilotonnes)
<1796 <1796 1816 2015 LOW A 2nd (2015)

Average vehicle speeds during the weekday morning peak 

(7am-10am) on locally managed ‘A’ roads in Leicestershire 

(mph)

29.5 30.27 31.7 2016 G 2nd (2015/16)

Increase sustainable 

travel
Local bus passenger journeys originating in the authority area 13.6m 13.6m 13m

Mth 9 

2017/18
R 4th (2016/17)

12-month figures based upon latest reported data - in-year data is subject to change until final confirmed data for full year.

Transport Performance FY2017/18 Q4

Interim 

Target
Latest Data

Strategic transport 

improvements and 

reducing congestion

Making roads safer

Good level of highway 

maintenance

KEY: Directional Arrows show direction of travel from the previous 

data reported (        = improving performance,        = declining 

performance,         = no change)

 

110



APPENDIX B  
 
Performance RAG rating guidance 
 
Red, Amber, Green (RAG) Rating of Performance 
 
1. The determination of RAG ratings in this report is based upon a common approach to 

RAG ratings for corporate performance reporting to Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees.  The RAG ratings are based on performance towards the Strategic Plan 
and Department Commissioning Strategy targets unless shorter-term or longer-term 
targets have been included in the plan, such as those relating to the Environment 
Strategy. 

 
2. The RAG rating is a forward-looking indicator to prompt appropriate action; therefore, 

these definitions are firstly based around the action that is required.  
 

GREEN - No action required. This would normally be triggered when a performance 
indicator is currently meeting its target or on track to meet the target. As such no 
significant issues are being flagged up and actions to progress performance are in 
place.  

 
AMBER - Light touch monitoring required.  This would normally be triggered by a 
combination of the following:-  

 Performance is currently not meeting the target or set to miss the target by a 
narrow margin;  

 There are a set of actions in place that are expected to result in performance 
coming closer to meeting the target by the end of the target or reporting period; 

 There may be associated issues, risks and actions to be addressed to ensure 
performance progresses. 

 
RED - Close monitoring or significant action required.  This would normally be triggered 
by a combination of the following:- 

 Performance is currently not meeting the target or set to miss the target by a 
significant amount;  

 Actions in place are not believed to be enough to bring performance fully back 
on track before the end of the target or reporting period;  

 The issue requires further attention or action.  
 
3. The RAG ratings are assessed and determined by the Business Intelligence 

Environment and Transport Business Partner working with the Department. Ensuring 
an impartial evaluation of the evidence which provides a level of assurance and 
confidence in the findings. 

 
4. It was agreed at a previous meeting of the Environment and Transport Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee that, where an indicator is rated ‘Red’, it will be standard practice 
for a more detailed report on that area of performance to be scheduled for a future 
meeting of the Committee.  

 

111



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 6 April, 2018.
	10 Draft Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy.
	Appendix A - PTPS(draft Policy)
	Appendix B - PTPS (draft Strategy)
	Appendix C - (2nd report of Scrutiny panel)
	Appendix D (legal duty)
	Appendix E (current contracted services) V2
	Appendix F (framework)
	Appendix G1 (consultation docs - consultation) V2
	Appendix G2 (consultation docs - questionnaire)
	Appendix G3 (consultation docs - A4 Poster)
	Appendix G4 (consultation docs - FAQs) 03.04.18

	11 Performance Report Quarter 4.
	Appendix A - Performance Report Quarter  4 2017 18
	Appendix B - Performance Report Quarter 4 2017 18


